
CITY OF ELKO 
CITY MANAGER 

1751 COLLEGE AVENUE 
ELKO, NEV ADA 89801 

(77 5) 777-7110/F AX (77 5) 777-7119 

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE 

The Elko City Council will meet in special session on Thursday, February 11, 2021 
at 4:00 P.M.-7:00 P.M., P.S.T. at the Elko Convention Center, Turquoise Room and by utilizing 

GoToMeeting.com 

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 
GoToMeeting.com 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/ioin/629912813 

ELKO CITY HALL 
1751 College A venue, Elko, NV 89801 

Date/Time Posted: 3:00 p.m. P.S.T., Friday, February 5, 2021 

Posted by: Kim Wilkinson 
Name 

Administrative Assistant 
Title Signature 

The public may contact Kim Wilkinson by phone at (775) 777-7110 or email at 
kwilkinson@elkocitynv.gov to request supporting material for the meeting described herein. 
The agenda and supporting material is available on the City website at http://www.elkocity.com 

The public can view or participate in the virtual meeting on a computer, laptop, tablet or smart 
phone at: https://global.gotomeeting.com/ioin/ You can also dial in using your phone at +1 
{872) 240-3311 the Access Code for this meeting is 629-912-813 Public Comment and questions 
can be received by calling (775) 777-0590 or by emailing: cityclerk@elkocitynv.gov 

New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts: 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/629912813 

Dated this 5th day of February, 2021 

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES 

Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the 
meeting are requested to notify the Elko City Council, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, Nevada 89801, 
or by calling (775) 777-7110. 

Curtis Calder, City Manager 
Elko, Nevada 



CALL TO ORDER 

CITY OF ELKO 
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

SPECIAL MEETING 
4:00 P.M., P.S.T. 

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 2021 
ELKO CONVENTION CENTER, 

TURQUOISE ROOM 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/ioin/629912813 

The Agenda for this meeting of the City of Elko City Council has been posted for this date 
. and time in accordance with State of Nevada Emergency Directive 006. The public can 
view or participate in the virtual meeting on a computer, laptop, tablet or smart phone by 
registering at the link above. 

ROLL CALL 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and 
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item 
on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda 
and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: January 26, 2021 Regular Session 

I. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Reading of a proclamation by the Mayor in recognition of the month of February 
as Elko County CattleWomen "Beef Month", and matters related thereto. 
INFORMATION ONLY - NO ACTION WILL BE TAKEN 

B. Presentation of a Certificate of Appreciation for Andrew Storla, Water/Sewer 
Operator III, in recognition of his military service with the 100th Quartermaster 
Water Purification & Distribution Company, Nevada Army National Guard, and 
matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY - NO ACTION WILL BE 
TAKEN 

C. Northeastern Nevada Regional Hospital (NNRH) Update by CEO Steve Simpson, 
and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY - NO ACTION WILL BE 
TAKEN 

2/11/2021 City Council Agenda 1 



II. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Review, consideration, and possible approval for the Elko Police Department to 
accept a $1,000.00 donation from Home Depot, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

III. PERSONNEL 

A. Employee Introductions: 

1.) Trey Bauders, Patrol Officer, Police Department 

IV. APPROPRIATIONS 

. A. Review and possible approval of Warrants, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

B. Review and possible approval of Print n' Copy Warrants, and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

C. Review and possible approval of Ruby Mountain Lock & Safe Warrants, and 
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

D. Review and possible ratification of General Hand-Cut Checks, and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

E. Review, consideration, and possible approval for the Fire Department to apply for 
the 2021 FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

The City of Elko Fire Department would like to apply for the 2021 FEMA 
Assistance to Firefighters Grant. This grant would be used to purchase mobile 
radios and mobile repeaters. Total amount of the grant would be approximately 
$45,505.00 with a 10% match. JS 

V. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Review, consideration, and possible authorization for Staff to obtain a new 
appraisal for APN 001-013-018, located generally east of Sewell Drive, south of 
Walnut Street and north of West Sage Street, consisting of a 2,643 square foot 
parcel, and to thereafter commence the process of advertising the property for sale 
pursuant to NRS 268.059 and 268.062, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

2/11/2021 

On August 25, 2020, City Council held a public auction for the sale of 
approximately 3,073 square feet of City owned property known as APN 001-013-
018. The Butch Smales Family Revocable Living Trust was the successful bidder. 
During the title investigation process, it was determined that approximately 430 

City Council Agenda 2 



square feet of APN 001-013-018 is not owned by the City of Elko. The City is 
currently working with the Butch Smales Family Revocable Living Trust on an 
agreement for the rescission of the previous transaction. The City then intends to 
sell the remainder of the parcel owned by the City in the manner authorized under 
Nevada law. CL 

B. Review, consideration, and possible approval of an agreement with the Butch 
Smales Family Revocable Living Trust to mutually rescind the sale of APN 001-
013-018, located generally east of Sewell Drive, south of Walnut Street and north 
of West Sage Street, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

On August 25, 2020, City Council held a public auction for the sale of 
approximately 3,073 square feet of City owned property. During the title process, 
it was determined that approximately 430 square feet of APN 001-013-018 is not 
owned by the City of Elko. The City now seeks to enter into an agreement wi.th 
Butch Smales Family Revocable Living Trust to rescind the transaction. CL 

C. Review, consideration, and possible action to accept the 2020 Annual Report of 
Planning Commission Activities, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION 

Pursuant to City Code Section 3-4-23, the Planning Commission is required to 
prepare and present an Annual Report of its activities to Council. On February 2, 
2021, the Planning Commission took action to approve the 2020 Annual Report of 
Planning Commission Activities and forward it to the Council. CL 

VI. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 

A. Review, consideration, and possible adoption of Resolution No. 07-21, a resolution 
of the City Council approving the lease of real property less than 25,000 square 
feet, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Plaza Forty, LLC previously held a Lease Agreement to use City of Elko property 
located at Well Site # 12, adjacent to 1900 Idaho Street, for parking. The agreement 
expired November 12, 2018, but Plaza Forty, LLC has continued paying the 
monthly lease. Plaza Forty, LLC desires to continue utilizing the City property for 
parking. NRS 268.064 provides that the governing body may lease the property 
without an appraisal or public offering if the property is less than 25,000 square 
feet and a Resolution has been adopted finding that the proposed lease is in the best 
interest of the City. Resolution No. 07-21 begins the process for the continued lease. 
MR 

B. Review, consideration, and possible approval of Resolution No. 08-21, a resolution 
authorizing the expenditure of funds by the Redevelopment Agency from its 
Special Revenue Fund in the amount of $675,000, for the work proposed for the 
4th

, 5th
, and 6th Street Block Ends Project, and matters related thereto. FOR 

POSSIBLE ACTION 

2/11/2021 City Council Agenda 3 



RDA approved the Block Ends Project as Project 3 of Phase 1 at their February 14, 
2017 meeting. As per the Redevelopment Plan, Council must give consent on the 
expenditures. CL 

VII. PETITIONS, APPEALS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Review, consideration, and possible approval of issuing a revised Retail Liquor 
License to Gold Bar / Sartini Gaming, LLC, modifying the current Retail Liquor 
License to remove Sean Higgins and add Phyllis Gilland and Stephen Arcana, and 
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

B. Discussion of the rules on placement of sheds within the City of Elko, the Variance 
process, and the associated Variance fees, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

The property owners of 2034 Eagle Ridge Loop built a shed in the exterior side 
yard of their lot without permits and after being informed that a shed would not be 
allowed in that location. City Code Section 3-2-5(B)(6) requires that accessory 
structures comply with the same setbacks as the primary structure and Section 2-1-
4(G)(l )( a)(l )(A) requires a building permit for accessory structures of any size 
within residential areas. The Development Manager, acting as the City's Code 
Enforcement Officer, sent out two violation letters to the property owners. This 
discussion was requested by the property owners as a result of those letters. MR 

VIII. REPORTS 

.. 

A. 
B. 
C. 
D. 
E. 
F. 
G . 
H. 
I. 
J. 
K. 
L. 
M. 
N. 
0. 
P. 

2/11/2021 

Mayor and City Council 
City Manager 
Assistant City Manager 
Utilities Director 
Public Works 
Airport Manager 
City Attorney 
Fire Chief 
Police Chief 
City Clerk 
City Planner 
Development Manager 
Financial Services Director 
Parks and Recreation Director 
Civil Engineer 
Building Official 

City Council Agenda 4 



COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and 
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item 
on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda 
and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

NOTE: The Mayor, Mayor Pro Tempore, or other Presiding Officer of the City Council 
reserves the right to change the order of the agenda, and if the agenda has not been 
completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another specified date and time. 
Additionally, the City Council reserves the right to combine two or more agenda 
items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay discussion relating to an 
item on the agenda at any time. 

ADJOURNMENT 

2/11/2021 City Council Agenda 

Curtis Calder 
City Manager 

5 



City of Elko 
County of Elko 
State of Nevada 

) 
) 
) ss January 26, 2021 

The City Council of the City of Elko, State of Nevada met for a regular meeting beginning 
at 4:00 p.m., Tuesday, July 28, 2020. Due to the restrictions found in the State of Nevada 
Emergency Directive 006, the meeting was held in the Ruby Room of the Elko Convention and 
Visitors Authority, 700 Moren Way, Elko and via GoTo Meeting. 

This meeting was called to order by Mayor Reece Keener. He stated the agenda for this 
meeting has been posted for this date and time in accordance with State of Nevada Emergency 
Directive 006. The public can participate in person, by phone, tablet, laptop, or computer by 
registering with the GoTo Meeting link provided in the agenda, or calling 775-777-0590. 
Questions can be sent to cityclerk@elkocitynv.gov. 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

Mayor Present: 

Council Present: 

Reece Keener 

Councilwoman Simons 
Councilman Chip Stone 
Councilman Bill Hance 
Councilman Clair Morris 

City Staff Present: Curtis Calder, City Manager 
Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager 
Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk 
Candi Quilici, Accounting Manager 
Jan Baum, Financial Services Director 
Susie Shurtz, Human Resources Manager 
Dale Johnson, Utilities Director 
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 
Jim Foster, Airport Manager 
Matt Griego, Fire Chief 
Jack Snyder, Deputy Fire Chief 
Ty Trouten, Police Chief 
Dave Stanton, City Attorney 
Michele Rambo, Development Manager 
James Wiley, Parks and 
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer 
Diann Byington, Recording Secretary 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

1/26/2021 City Council Minutes Page 1 ofl8 



COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and 
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item 
on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda 
and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

Mayor Keener read an email into the record from Charles Schaer (Exhibit "A"). 

Nate Helton, Senator Jackie Rosen's Office in Reno, said he was there to be a resource to the 
Council and the City of Elko. He would be willing to relay any messages or opinions to the 
Senator. If the City needs assistance to let him know and he would do his best to help. His phone 
number is 775-560-1671. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: January 12, 2020 Regular Session 

The minutes were approved by general consent. 

I. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Reading of a Proclamation in recognition of the month of February as Children's 
Dental Health Month, and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY -NO 
ACTION TAKEN 

Mayor Keener read the Proclamation. 

B. Presentation of a Retirement Plaque to Building Inspector, Layne Kenley for his 
many years of service, and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY - NO 
ACTION TAKEN 

Mayor Keener called Layne Kenley up to the front of the room and presented him with a plaque. 

Layne Kenley, Building Inspector, said it was his pleasure. He worked with a lot of good people. 

Councilman Morris said he and Mr. Kenley go way back. They went to high school together and 
played on some team sports together. He wished him and his wife a good retirement and hoped 
they enjoy themselves. 

Jeff Ford, Building Official, said thanked Mr. Kenley for all his hard work. 

C. Presentation of a Retirement Plaque to City Sexton, Jan Petersen for her many years 
of service, and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY - NO ACTION 
TAKEN 

Mayor Keener called Jan Petersen up to the front and presented her with a plaque. 

1/26/2021 City Council Minutes Page 2 of18 



Jan Petersen said she hadn't planned on retiring but with her hours being reduced it wasn't 
economically feasible anymore. She is still willing to volunteer when needed. She had a great 
crew to work with and it was a great honor to serve as the City Sexton. 

James Wiley, Parks and Recreation Director, thanked Ms. Petersen for all of her hard work and 
dedication to the cemetery. The cemetery has come a long way. He remembers the days when 
everything was written in pencil. 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Review, consideration, and possible initiation of a conveyance of City-owned 
property located at 1401 College Avenue, to the Great Basin Children's Advocacy 
Center (GBCAC), and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

On October 27, 2020, the City Council received information from Tyler Ingram 
regarding a proposed Children's Advocacy Center. Since that time, Mr. Ingram has 
secured support from Elko County, Eureka County, and is actively working with 
the Pennington Foundation for financial assistance. A request letter has been 
included in the agenda packet for review. CC 

Curtis Calder, City Manager, explained Mr. Ingram was present. We want to participate in the 
completion of this great project. 

Tyler Ingram, Elko County District Attorney, gave an update on the Great Basin Children's 
Advocacy Center. He also explained what the facility's function will be and what it will do to 
assist in child abuse cases. This will be a regional Children's Advocacy Center for all surrounding 
counties. Right now, his office is actively handling 85 of these types of cases. Those numbers 
were run this morning and that is just Elko County. The Great Basin Children's Advocacy Center 
is a 50lc3 non-profit that they are hoping to organize entirely under Elko County. He was asking 
that the land be conveyed to the organization or the county. 

Mayor Keener stated he was onboard. 

Councilman Morris added that he could not think of a better use of that land. 

Chief Trouten said at this time they are conducting the children's interviews at the Police facility. 
If you have been to the Police Department, you know there are no waiting spaces for families or 
victims and sometimes the victim could be in the waiting room with the offender and the officers 
would not know that yet. Plus, there are other types of workers coming in for cards. 

Sheriff Aitor Narvaiza said the jail is full of suspects that have been arrested for these crimes. This 
new facility will be great for the children. It will benefit all the surrounding counties. 

Brian Boatman is a new resident in the City of Elko. He came from West Wendover where he 
worked for 10 years in law enforcement and served as a municipal judge for 7 years. Most recently 
he was offered a job at Juvenile Parole and Probation. The Chief Juvenile Probation Officer was 
unable to attend this meeting and asked that he convey their support for this facility. 

1/26/2021 City Council Minutes Page 3 of18 



Kevin McKinney, Sheriffs Office, said he has been investigating child abuse cases since 1995. 
He has conducted many children interviews. He has also seen the positive impact for the children 
at an advocacy center. A facility like this helps the prosecution and also helps the child achieve 
closure. Child Advocacy Centers have been around since 1985 and there are over 1000 in the 
nation. It is about time that we step up and improve how we treat these children. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Stone, seconded by Councilman Morris, to 
initiate the conveyance of City owned property located at 1401 College Avenue to the Great 
Basin Children's Advocacy Center and/or the County of Elko, and also direct staff to work 
with Tyler Ingram to draft an appropriate agreement. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 
I. PRESENTATIONS (Cont.) 

D. Presentation and possible approval of a proposal for play elements for the Elko Dog 
Park, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The volunteer committee representing the Elko Dog Park is proposing several play 
elements to be included within the park. A power point presentation showing the 
conceptual layout of the various equipment has been included in the packet for 
review. JW 

Mr. Wiley introduced the Elko Dog Park Volunteers. About a year ago, this Council approved 
changing the use of the 5th Street Park from soccer to a Dog Park. 

Darcy Shelton, Elko Dog Park Volunteer Committee, gave a presentation (included in the packet). 
They have talked about funding and are currently working at raising funds. They have about 10% 
of their goal right now. 

Mr. Wiley spoke further about the proposed layout of the park. The parking lot is currently out to 
bid and estimates are budgeted for about $300,000. They plan to have that done June 30th• There 
is fencing that will divide the park. There will also be walkways that will lead to each part of the 
park. 

Mayor Keener asked if he had any maintenance concerns regarding the play elements that were 
presented. 

Mr. Wiley answered no. 

Councilman Stone asked if bag stands for disposal would be available. 

Mr. Wiley answered there are some already up there but they may need to move them. The City 
will provide them. 

** A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Stone, to 
approve the proposal for play elements at the Elko Dog Park. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

1/26/2021 City Council Minutes Page 4 of18 



II. CONSENT AGENDA 

Mayor Keener explained that Chief Trouten asked that one of these items be removed from the 
Consent Agenda. 

A. Review, consideration, and possible approval for the Elko Police Department to 
apply for a grant through Kinross Gold Corp., in the amount of fifty-six thousand 
dollars ($56,000), to assist with costs associated with purchasing a firearms training 
simulator, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

** A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Stone, to 
approve the Elko Police Department's request to apply for a grant through Kinross Gold 
Corp., in the amount of fifty-six thousand dollars ($56,000), to assist with costs associated 
with purchasing a firearms training simulator. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

B. Review, consideration, and possible approval for the Elko Police Department to 
accept a $100,000.00 grant from Nevada Gold Mines to assist with costs associated 
with purchasing a firearms training simulator (FTS), and matters related thereto. 
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

On December 8, 2020, the Elko City Council approved the Elko Police 
Department's request to apply for a $156,000.00 grant through Nevada Gold Mines 
to assist with costs associated with purchasing a firearms training simulator (FTS). 
The Elko Police Department received notification of Nevada Gold Mines intent to 
award a grant in the amount of $100,000.00. There is no funding match required 
for this mini-grant. TT 

Chief Trouten explained there were two items in the paperwork that needed to be corrected. The 
first one is the date that will need to be updated to today's date. The other is a small item on page 
2 under item F. It states EPD recognizes that it does not have authority to direct, supervise over 
EPD Personnel. There is a small typo there. It should be "NGM recognizes that it does not have 
authority ... " 

Mayor Keener stated it is a very generous grant and he thanked NGM for their community 
partnership and support on this. This facility will be available to neighboring agencies. It will be 
a terrific training tool for our officers. 

* * A motion was made by Councilman Stone, seconded by Councilman Morris, to 
approve the Elko Police Department to accept a $100,000 grant from Nevada Gold Mines, 
with the edit of the date and another edit on page 2 under item F, to correct the typo to say, 
"NGM recognizes that it does not have authority to direct." 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

1/26/2021 City Council Minutes Page 5 of18 



III. PERSONNEL 

A. Employee Introductions: 

1) Ron Fahrney, Building Inspector, Building Department 
Present and introduced 

B. Appointment of Ms. Nancy Porter as a Deputy City Attorney, and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Ms. Nancy Porter has recently joined the Goicoechea, DiGrazia, Coyle & Stanton 
Law Firm. As such, Ms. Porter will be working from time to time on City of Elko
related issues. City Attorney David Stanton is requesting that Ms. Porter be 
appointed as a Deputy City Attorney. CC 

Dave Stanton, City Attorney, explained Ms. Porter was unable to attend tonight so they would not 
be able to swear her in. They could appoint her absentia and swear her in at a later date, or do both 
at the next meeting. 

** A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Stone, to 
appoint Ms. Nancy Porter as a Deputy City Attorney. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

IV. APPROPRIATIONS 

A. Review and possible approval of Warrants, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

** A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Hance, to 
approve the general warrants in the amount of $279,338.72. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

B. Review and possible approval of Print n' Copy Warrants, and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

** A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Hance, to 
approve the Print 'N Copy warrants in the amount of $417. 73. 

The motion passed. (4-0 Mayor Keener abstained.) 

C. Review and possible ratification of General Hand-Cut Checks, and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

1/26/2021 City Council Minutes Page 6 of18 



** A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Morris, to 
approve the General Hand-Cut Checks in the amount of $190,457.10. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

D. Review and possible designation of an independent auditor to prepare the annual 
audit for the City of Elko for Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2021, pursuant to NRS. 
354.624, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Each year the City is required to designate an independent auditor prior to March 
31 of the year in which the audit is to be conducted. The City put out Requests for 
Proposals for auditing services for a period of five years on March 2016, and 
awarded the RFP to HintonBurdick, PLLC. The City of Elko Financial Services 
Director would like to extend the agreement with HintonBurdick, PLLC one 
additional year. JB 

Curtis Calder, City Manager, recommended extending the agreement one more year. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Stone, seconded by Councilman Hance, to 
approve HintonBurdick, PLLC as the City of Elko's independent auditors for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2021, in the amount not to exceed $60,000. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

E. Review, consideration, and possible approval of Change Order 3 to MGM 
Construction, INC for the hauling of trash and contaminated soil to Lockwood 
Nevada for disposal, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Upon installing the foundation and utilities for the Water and Water Reclamation 
Facility (WRF) Shop, trash and contaminated soil was discovered. This area had to 
be overexcavated and now the contaminated soil needs to be shipped to a Lockwood 
Nevada for Disposal. Lockwood was the approved Waste Management site based 
on the waste profile that was completed by Broadbent & Associates. DJ 

Dale Johnson, Utilities Director, explained we have seen part of this before. This is to haul 
approximately 131 loads at a cost of $1,359 per load, for a total amount of $192,240. The 
contaminated soil will be treated by bio-remediation. We looked at different places to take this. 
We felt this was the cheapest route for the City. 

Mayor Keener wondered if some of the contaminated soil could be put in our landfill. 

Mr. Johnson answered it was all going to Lockwood. Our air permit at the landfill does not allow 
for us to put the contaminated soil there. 

There was some discussion regarding going back to the previous land users or owners to get them 
to pay for the soil to be transported. It was believed that the contaminated soil had been there for 
a very long time. Some of that property was acquired with Project Lifesaver. There is a question 
of who the responsible party would be, the nature of the contamination and which regulatory 

1/26/2021 City Council Minutes Page 7 of 18 



agency would have to get involved. The City does not have a code to take action directly. It was 
decided that if we took that route, there would be costly studies and legal fees to get 
reimbursement. 

Mr. Johnson noted that NDEP has been involved and they are working with the City and Broadbent 
& Associates. They have tested more areas and they are determining if this source has any impact 
on the river. 

* * A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Hance, to 
approve the appropriation of Change Order 3 in the amount of $192,240 payable to MGM 
Construction, Inc. for the hauling of the trash and contaminated soil to Waste Management's 
site in Lockwood, Nevada. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

F. Review, consideration, and possible authorization of increasing the existing force 
account amount by $100,000.00 to include the tipping fees and disposal of the 
contaminated soil found during the construction of the Water and Water 
Reclamation Facility (WRF) Shop, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION 

At the July 14, 2020 Council meeting, a force account was established for change 
orders beyond our standard policy for the construction of the Water and Water 
Reclamation Facility (WRF) Shop in the amount of $100,000. Currently we have 
used approximately $37,000 out of this account through 10 months of construction. 
With 4 months of construction remaining we would like to keep the remaining 
balance for construction purposes if needed. Due to the contaminated soil found 
during construction we are anticipating $98,000 for tipping fees and disposal of the 
material. Staff would like to increase the Force Account by $100,000 to allow for 
these added costs. DJ 

Mr. Johnson explained we are asking to increase the force account to cover the tipping costs. 

** A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Stone, to 
authorize increasing the existing force account by $100,000 to cover the cost associated for 
tipping fees and the disposal of the contaminated soil that was discovered during 
construction of the new Water and Water Reclamation Facility Shop. Total amount 
expenditures of the force account will not exceed $200,000 without Council approval. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

V. SUBDIVISIONS 

A. Review, consideration, and possible conditional acceptance of Public 
Improvements for the Aspen Heights Subdivision, and matters related thereto. 
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

1/26/2021 City Council Minutes Page 8 of18 



Council approved Final Map 3-20 on July 14, 2020. An Agreement to Install Public 
Improvements and a Performance Guarantee was entered into with the current 
owner on October 13, 2020. 

The Developer has substantially completed the Public Improvements in accordance 
with the approved plans with the exception of one outstanding item. The developer 
is asking for a conditional acceptance with the understanding that the remaining 
item will be completed prior to the City releasing the Maintenance Bond. The City 
is in receipt of the required Certification of the project by the Engineer of Record. 
Upon acceptance of the Public Improvements by the Council, the Developer is 
required to provide maintenance security in the amount of $35,203.80 for a 12-
month maintenance period. MR 

Michele Rambo, Development Manager, explained the improvements have been put in and 
inspected. The slurry seal of the asphalt still needs to be completed. We received the maintenance 
bond today. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Stone, seconded by Councilman Hance, for 
conditional acceptance of the public improvements for the Aspen Heights Subdivision with 
the noted exceptions. 

x. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

5:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. Review, consideration, and possible action to adopt Resolution No. 03-21, a 
resolution of the Elko City Council, adopting a change in zoning district boundaries 
from CT (Commercial Transitional) to PQP (Public, Quasi-Public) Zoning District, 
approximately 11.38 acres of property, filed by Elko Institute for Academic 
Achievement, and processed as Rezone No. 3-20, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

The Planning Commission considered the Subject Zone Change Request on 
January 5, 2021, and took action to forward a recommendation to City Council to 
adopt a resolution, which approves Rezone No. 3-20. CL 

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, explained this was a City of Elko parcel that was sold to the United 
Methodist Church with a deed restriction for no high density residential. They turned around it 
and sold it to a private party who then sold it to another developer. They didn't do anything about 
it and sold it to the Elko Institute for Academic Achievement. Their intent is to build a charter 
school and the PQP is the best fit. The rezone is not in conformance with our Master Plan Land 
Use component but we can approve this and amend the Master Plan later. She asked for a typo in 
the resolution be addressed in the motion. In the Now, therefore section, it states it is at the 
intersection of College A venue but it should read College Parkway. 

Mayor Keener said there is a couple dozen affected properties in the area. Was there any public 
comment regarding this. 

1/26/2021 City Council Minutes Page 9 of 18 



Ms. Laughlin answered they did get one public comment during the GoToMeeting. She wasn't an 
adjacent property owner but she was concerned with the traffic from Skyline getting out to Ruby 
Vista. Our Public Works Director doesn't think that is a problem. We will address that when we 
see the plans for the facility. This is about the zone and not the development of the school. 

Mayor Keener called for public comment. 

Pete Dondero stated he lives in that neighborhood. Where the gas station is, that is the crown of 
that hill. That is also where the street in question enters into Ruby Vista. If there was another way 
out of that property for the school, it will be nice to figure it out. That is a tough intersection as it 
IS. 

* * A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Hance, to 
adopt Resolution No. 03-21 and acknowledge that there was a typo that will be corrected 
identifying it at the intersection of College Parkway and not College Avenue. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

B. Public hearing pursuant to NRS 268.059(1)(a) regarding the fair market value and 
possible sale at public auction of approximately 49,069 sq. ft. of City-owned 
property located generally on the Elko Regional Airport, designated as LEASE 
AREA Nl. Discussion and possible motion determining that the fair market value 
of the property is $13,379.00 in accordance with the appraisal of Jason Buckholz 
of CRBE, Inc., appraiser, and possible adoption of Resolution No. 01-21, a 
resolution of the Elko City Council finding it is in the best interest of the City to 
lease land LEASE AREA Nl and hereby declaring its intention to lease such 
property at public auction pursuant to City Code Section 8-1-3 and NRS 268.062, 
and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Classic Air Care dba MedX AirOne has petitioned the City of Elko to lease airport 
owned property identified as Lease Area Nl located on the Elko Regional Airport. 
Council accepted the petition and authorized Staff to obtain the required appraisal 
and proceed with the statutory process of leasing the parcel at public auction as 
required by NRS 268.062. JF 

Jim Foster, Airport Manager, explained the appraisal was provided in the packet, along with the 
resolution. The next phase would be the public auction. 

Mayor Keener said in the other facility leases, the FAA has a set rate per square foot. 

Mr. Foster answered there was a Resolution passed some time ago that states the going rate for 
leases is $0.28 per square foot. There is an NRS requirement that anything over ½ acres has to go 
to public auction. The small hangers are less than a½ acre and don't require these extra steps. 

Mayor Keener called for public comment without a response. 

1/26/2021 City Council Minutes Page 10 of18 



** A motion was made by Councilman Hance, seconded by Councilwoman Simons, to 
accept the fair market value as determined at the public hearing, adopt Resolution No. 01-
21 and set the matter for public auction. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

A. Review, consideration, and possible approval of a Golf Management Agreement 
between the City of Elko and TDS at Ruby View, LLC d.b.a. Duncan Golf 
Management, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Curtis Calder, City Manager, said representatives of Duncan Golf are present on the GoToMeeting. 
Negotiations have been ongoing for more than a month. There may be some minor typographical 
errors but we are done with the agreement (Exhibit "B"). He went over the agreement for Council. 
The auditing firm reviewed the accounting on this agreement to make sure we are not in violation 
of anything. He is excited about the agreement and is looking forward to the new season. 

Councilwoman Simons asked Scott Wackowski, since he is from out of the area, how will he run 
the golf course? Will he hire someone locally? 

Scott Wackowski, Duncan Golf, answered they envision this being an outside hire of someone 
local to our area. They are currently looking at some candidates. 

Councilman Stone asked where did we end up on the food and beverage side. 

Mr. Calder answered because of the past agreements, none of those clubhouse related revenues 
were retained by the concessionaire. This agreement is different where the city will pay for the 
expenses but we will also receive part of the revenue. Every year we will go over the expense 
budget and adjust it as necessary. We think the budget is pretty close. If play returns to the course, 
we get a piece of that. The only thing we would not get a piece of is gaming revenue. It is up to 
them to put in machines. If there is a golf tournament, Duncan Golf gets the first exclusive right 
to the catering. 

Mr. Wackowski said in 2019, at another golf course, they held a concert that was too big for their 
kitchen to handle so they hired caterers for that. If they can handle their events their in-house 
kitchen, they prefer to use their own staff. 

Councilwoman Simons stated we have a great Golf Course Financial Advisory Committee. Do 
they use such committees? 

Mr. Wachowski answered they don't have any official advisory boards. 

Wil Moschetti, Golf Course Advisory Committee, 312 Oak Street, said he didn't get a chance to 
review the agreement since the agreement came out today. We are going into the bar business. 
He spoke to someone at the AG's office and they told him we could not be part of the bar business. 
As the rates go forward, who is going to be in charge of the rates? 

1/26/2021 City Council Minutes Page 11 of18 



Mr. Calder answered we are in the process of preparing the new budget. We made a decision to 
keep the rates the same for the next upcoming season. We asked around if the rates were good 
and we were told the rates were good. Since the City will be taking care of the maintenance, the 
City will retain control over the rates. We will want input from the management. The Financial 
Advisory Committee will also be making their recommendations. The rates will still be under the 
control of the Council. 

Mr. Moschetti asked Dave Stanton if he has contacted the Attorney General about the City being 
part of the bar business. 

Dave Stanton, City Attorney, answered he has not. He could research the question. This isn't 
something he has researched. This matter could be tabled and he could prepare a legal opinion. 
This is a unique situation where it is a management contract where part of the compensation is 
based on the sale of alcoholic beverages from the bar, along with other things. 

Mr. Moschetti encouraged them not to table this. It is almost golf season. He encouraged them to 
accept the proposal and move on. 

Mr. Stanton said we can have Duncan agree to an amendment of the contract ifwe determine the 
contract needs to be rewritten to remove any sharing of profits from the sale of alcoholic beverages. 

Mr. Wachowski agreed to Mr. Stanton's stipulation. 

Mayor Keener called for public comment. 

Chris Johnson, 123 Woods Ct., asked about the hours of operation for Ruby View. 

Mr. Wachowski answered they set the first tee time to be½ hour before sunrise to ½ hour after 
sunset. 

Mr. Calder noted that the Golf Course Superintendent will be part of setting the hours of the golf 
course. We are still under restrictions of the pandemic. He expects the Superintendent and the 
manager to be having these discussions so we are not stepping on anyone's toes. 

Mr. Johnson asked who would be picking up the range balls. 

Mr. Calder answered the golf management will be providing employees to do that. 

Mr. Johnson spoke about some things that he would like to see done at the golf course and spoke 
favorably about Duncan Golf Management. 

** A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Hance, to 
approve the Golf Management Agreement between the City of Elko and TDS at Ruby View, 
LLC dba Duncan Golf Management, for the period of February 1, 2021through December 
31, 2022, with an option to extend through December 31, 2027, providing the City Manager 

1/26/2021 City Council Minutes Page 12 of18 



with authority to make non-substantive changes to the document, and also in the event there 
is a legal issue with the bar revenues, that there be an amendment forthcoming to address it. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

VII. NEW BUSINESS (Cont.) 

B. Review, discussion, and possible approval to initiate revisions to the Elko City 
Charter at the 81 st Session of the Nevada Legislature, thereby updating language 
pertaining to the appointed position of Municipal Judge, and matters related thereto. 
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Curtis Calder, City Manager, said we are in the process of trying to get a bill draft submitted to the 
legislature. Deputy City Attorney Coyle has drafted some language and we sent it out late today 
for review. We are late in the game submitting bill drafts but Assemblyman Ellison indicated last 
week that he has one remaining bill draft place holder that he would be willing to utilize for this 
purpose. This has been brought to our attention by the Municipal Judges. 

Tom Coyle, Deputy City Attorney, explained the bill draft proposal (Exhibit "C"). Our Charter 
only allows for one municipal judge. To address that we kept the municipal judge in that position 
and put the second one in the substitute position. That didn't work too well. They requested the 
update and to have a judicial department. We have addressed the hole in our code regarding 
municipal judges with the drafted changes. He asked for authorization to initiate the process. 

Mr. Calder said when we receive feedback from the municipal judges and if we need to make any 
revisions, we are ready to send it off to Assemblyman Ellison and he would then submit it to LCB 
on his behalf. The LCB will put it in the queue for a bill draft and it will be assigned a number 
and go through the legislative process. A lot of bill drafts die for various political reasons. We 
have to watch the bill draft closely. Sometimes we have money and we hire a lobbyist to watch 
that but this year staff will be watching the process. 

** A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Hance, to 
give approval to initiate revisions to the Elko City Charter and submit a BDR to the 81 st 

session of the legislature to update language for the position of municipal judge. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

C. Review of the 2020 Shop Local Campaign conducted by the Ruby Radio 
Corporation, including consideration of a request to continue a similar campaign in 
2021, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

A copy of the Ruby Radio Corporation presentation has been included in the agenda 
packet for review. CC 

Mr. Calder said he didn't think we had anyone on from Ruby Radio. There is a submittal in the 
packet that reviews the Shop Local program. Generally speaking, we monitor our sales tax 
revenues very closely. We were concerned at the beginning of the budget year last year that we 
would see a significant drop in sales taxes so we adjusted our budgets accordingly. We worked 

1/26/2021 City Council Minutes Page 13 of18 



with the County to start this first phase of the radio advertising. In the end, as we watched our 
sales tax revenues come in, we are about 3% higher than we were the previous year. He thought 
there was some evidence that the local consumer confidence is pretty high here. He wanted to 
organize another Shop Local Campaign but it should be organized in our budget process. Our 
budget is getting ready to start and this is something we can put into the budget. 

Mayor Keener agreed with the campaign. 

Councilman Stone said this has been a positive thing. If we do this with our budget, you don't 
want to overdo a message. We need to change it up a bit. It is a great program that helped many 
businesses. 

* * A motion was made by Councilman Stone, seconded by Councilman Morris, to 
postpone the 2020 Shop Local Campaign to be discussed and built into the next budgeting 
cycle. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

VIII. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 

A. Review, consideration, and possible approval of Resolution No. 04-21, a resolution 
donating a City of Elko Ambulance to Great Basin College, and matters related 
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

The City of Elko Fire Department has determined that the 2003 Navistar 
Ambulance has reached its useful life for the City and would like to donate the 
Ambulance to Great Basin College Health Sciences & Human Services 
Department. MG 

Chief Griego explained this was the ambulance that we just replaced. It had several mechanical 
problems that we could not remedy. Great Basin College was in need of a laboratory for their 
EMT and Paramedic training. They have looked at it and want it for their lab. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Stone, seconded by Councilman Hance, to adopt 
Resolution No. 04-21, finding the 2003 Navistar Ambulance has reached its useful life for the 
City of Elko and approve the donation to Great Basin College. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

B. Review, consideration, and possible approval of Resolution No. 05-21, a resolution 
donating a City of Elko Self Contained Breathing Apparatus Air Compressor. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

1/26/2021 

The City of Elko Fire Department has determined that the Mako SCBA Air 
Compressor has reached its useful life for the City and would like to donate the Air 
Compressor to the Elko County Fire Protection District. MG 

City Council Minutes Page 14 of 18 



Chief Griego explained this is the air compressor that we recently replaced with a new unit. This 
would be a greater capacity and more pressure than what the Elko County Fire Protection District 
has right now. It will also serve as a backup for us when needed. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Stone, seconded by Councilman Morris, to adopt 
Resolution No. 05-21, finding the Mako SCBA Air Compressor SN. 5407H1002104 has 
reached its useful life for the City of Elko and approve the donation to the Elko County Fire 
Protection District. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

C. Review, consideration, and possible approval of Resolution No. 6-21, a resolution 
expressing support of the local economy, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

Curtis Calder, City Manager, explained the title of this was somewhat broad because of the time 
of posting. At the time of posting we didn't know what the resolution would say. Council does 
have the option of revising this resolution and voting on it. 

Lee Hoffman said he was here as a concerned citizen. He is concerned for our City, County, State 
and Nation. Our freedoms are being stripped away. This issue with this resolution is whether you 
will take a stand in defense of your constituents. An argument can be made that Elko County has 
already dealt with this for us. The truth is that we need as many political subdivisions of the state 
as possible to get on board and push back. The more voices we get the louder we will be. While 
getting information for this resolution, Mr. Calder told him that ticking off the Governor and 
Democrats might not be the best strategy. If there is no financial impact to the state, I doubt that 
that they're going to care. The real question is that more important than the well-being and 
economy of Elko. Is it more important than our fundamental rights? He asked Council to carefully 
read all of the Therefores and remove any of them that contradict the terms of the City's agreement 
for the CARES Act Funds. There aren't any. This week the hotels should be filling up. We should 
be enjoying the music and poetry in this very room instead of being stuck in our homes. In your 
opinion, do you think the Governor really does and should have unlimited power to extend this 
emergency on and on? If that is your view, then don't adopt this resolution. Otherwise, please 
consider adopting this. 

Mayor Keener asked what is he really trying to accomplish. 

Mr. Hoffman answered that his goal is to make sure the Governor hears from the rural counties at 
some point in time. We may need to take a stronger stand. Ifwe don't ever say this is wrong and 
we need to do something different, then that leaves us in a weak position to do anything else going 
forward. There is a BDR submitted to limit the Governor's ability to perpetuate an emergency of 
this kind. We have to make a political statement. 

Councilman Stone said he has read over this and most of it he agrees with it. There is a lot of 
resolutions and things that we have been asked to do, rather told to do, by our Governor, that he 
doesn't agree with. He believes a majority of citizens would agree. He need to look at this. There 
is a reason nearby counties are doing this too. This is tough to know where to go. He thought we 
could do this in a way that we don't make our Governor our enemy. 

1/26/2021 City Council Minutes Page 15 of 18 



Councilman Morris said not everything he has done has hurt Elko County but he doesn't care about 
Elko County either. He is tired of the masks and it should be a personal choice to wear them. He 
thinks the Governor is vindictive and a bully and he has had enough of it. 

Councilwoman Simons agreed we need to stand our ground but her first opinion of this when she 
saw it on the agenda was that we are non-partisan. This is something that should fall onto the 
County. This is unusual for the City Council. As a non-partisan agency, we should make a more 
general statement. The County has already done this and we are part of the County. If the board 
votes for it, it's just a-typical than what they have done in the past. 

Councilman Hance said his standpoint is that the Governor does not have the right to override the 
legislative process. An emergency is an emergency. This has been drug out with order after order. 
We had a special session of the legislature and they had an opportunity to make some changes. 
We are dealing with COVID and some of the restrictions don't make sense. No one agrees on 
how to handle this. Even Fauci is going backwards on things he has said. He turned an OSHA 
inspector away from his business and told him to come back with a warrant. They do not have the 
right to make those inspections. Every time he turns away a customer that didn't wear a mask, he 
cringes and feels he has lost some business because of that restriction. This is something we can 
pass along. It is our voice. Our voice is not being heard by our Governor. 

Mr. Hoffman added the more voices we have the more clearly it will be heard. 

Mayor Keener stated he agreed with everything that was said by the board members. He felt as 
far as resolutions go, less is more. He wondered if we wanted to edit this document or adopt this 
as is. 

Dave Stanton, City Attorney, said usually a document like this gets reviewed by his office but that 
wasn't the case. There are some parts of the resolution that talk about his office doing work but 
he wanted more clarity as to what they would be doing. 

Mayor Keener said he went through what was provided and crossed out some of the paragraphs. 
He went over what he wanted to remove. 

Councilwoman Simons suggested staff working with Mr. Hoffman and coming back with a revised 
resolution that they can agree with. 

Mayor Keener noted that if we went that route it would be February before it would be heard again. 

Mr. Hoffman suggested passing the resolution by striking the items the Mayor proposed, that 
would be better than nothing. We do need to urge the Governor to do something and we need to 
include items that we can have control over. 

Mayor Keener thought if this was referred to a committee than we would get a better product. He 
asked if we they could have a motion to refer this to a committee. 

Mr. Stanton said it was not agenized that way. It can be tabled but not referred to a committee in 
a motion. 

1/26/2021 City Council Minutes Page 16 of 18 



Mayor Keener changed his mind and decided to go over the resolution paragraph by paragraph. 
He asked Ms. Wooldridge to put the Resolution back on the screen so they could make revisions. 
She highlighted the items they wanted removed in yellow and new paragraphs in green. 

Councilwoman Simons read the resolution as revised into the record. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Hance, seconded by Councilman Stone, to 
approve Resolution No. 06-21 as read into the record by Mayor Pro Tem. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

Councilman Hance asked that there by signature lines for each Councilmember. He was more 
than willing to put his name on this resolution. 

IX. PETITIONS, APPEALS, AND COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Ratification of the Police Chief issuing a 60-day Temporary Retail Wine and/or 
Beer License and issue a Regular Retail Wine and/or Beer License, to Jadyn 
Demaline, DBA Evergreen Flower and Events, located at 232 Third Street, Elko, 
NV 89801, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

Jason Pepper, Police Lieutenant, said the Chief wanted him to report that the background was 
completed and there was nothing negative to prevent this application from going forward. He did 
ask that the 60-day be corrected to 75-day because of the length of time it took to get the 
background information back. 

** A motion was made by Councilman Stone, seconded by Councilman Morris, to 
ratification issuing (with the noted change) a 75-day temporary retail wine and/or beer 
license and issue a Regular Retail Wine and/or Beer License to Jadyn Demaline, dba 
Evergreen Flower and Events, located at 232 Third Street, Elko, Nevada 89801. 

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0) 

XI. REPORTS 

A. Mayor and City Council 
Mayor Keener thanked DJ Smith for all of his work putting the meeting 

together. 
Councilman Morris said he knew the Convention Center was booked for the 

next meeting so he wanted the meeting to be moved back to Chambers. 
Mayor Keener said staff will be looking at all their options for the live 

meetings. 
Councilman Stone reported the ECVA Board meeting this ~orning, the 

marketing committee has some new people. He will remain Chairman on the 
marketing side. 

B. City Manager 

1/26/2021 

Curtis Calder reported there is a conflict on February 9th for the Council 
Meeting. Every single room is booked out at the ECVA. We can change the 

City Council Minutes Page 17 of 18 



meeting date to a night when a room is available. If we went back to Chambers, 
the public would be restricted. Maybe they could come in one or two at a time, 
but it would be very limited. 

C. Assistant City Manager 
D. Utilities Director 
E. Public Works 
F. Airport Manager 
G. City Attorney 
H. Fire Chief 
I. Police Chief 
J. City Clerk 
K. City Planner 
L. Development Manager 
M. Financial Services Director 
N. Parks and Recreation Director 
0. Civil Engineer 
P. Building Official 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and 
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item 
on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda 
and identified as an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN 

There were no public comments. 

There being no further business, Mayor Reece Keener adjourned the meeting. 

Mayor Reece Keener Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk 

1/26/2021 City Council Minutes Page 18 of18 



Agenda Item IL A. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval for the Elko Police Department 
to accept a $1,000.00 donation from Home Depot, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: February 11, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: CONSENT ITEM 

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes 

5. Background Information: 

6. Budget Information: 
Appropriation Required: N/ A 
Budget amount available: N/A 
Fund name: N/ A 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: 

9. Recommended Motion: Recommend approval for the Elko Police Department to 
accept a $1,000.00 donation from Home Depot. 

10. Prepared by: Elko Police Chief Ty Trouten 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: N/ A 

12. Council Action: 

13. Agenda Distribution: N/A 

Created on 2/1/2021 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



Agenda Item IV. E. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval for the Fire Department to apply 
for the 2021 FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant, and matters related thereto. 
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: February 11, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION 

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes 

5. Background Information: The City of Elko Fire Department would like to apply for 
the 2021 FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant. This grant would be used to 
purchase mobile radios and mobile repeaters. Total amount of the grant would be 
approximately $45,505.00 with a 10% match. JS 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: $4,136.73 
Budget amount available: $4,136.73 
Fund name: N/ A 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: NIA 

9. Recommended Motion: Recommend approval for the Fire Department to apply for 
the FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant in the amount of $45,505.00. 

10. Prepared by: Jack Snyder, Deputy Fire Chief 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: N/ A 

12. Council Action: 

13. Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 2/4/2021 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



Agenda Item V. A. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

I. Title: Review, consideration, and possible authorization for Staff to obtain a new appraisal 
for APN 001-013-018, located generally east of Sewell Drive, south of Walnut Street and 
north of West Sage Street, consisting of a 2,643 square foot parcel, and to thereafter 
commence the process of advertising the property for sale pursuant to NRS 268.059 and 
268.062, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: February 11, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes 

5. Background Information: On August 25, 2020, City Council held a public auction for the sale 
of approximately 3,073 square feet of City owned property known as APN 001-013-018. The 
Butch Smales Family Revocable Living Trust was the successful bidder. During the title 
investigation process, it was determined that approximately 430 square feet of APN 001-
013-018 is not owned by the City of Elko. The City is currently working with the Butch 
Smales Family Revocable Living Trust on an agreement for the rescission of the previous 
transaction. The City then intends to sell the remainder of the parcel owned by the City in 
the manner authorized under Nevada law. CL 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: 
Budget amount available: 
Fund name: 

7. Business Impact Statement: 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: 

9. Recommended Motion: Upon execution of an agreement with the Butch Smales Family 
Revocable Living Trust to rescind the previous transaction, direct Staff to obtain an 
appraisal for the property known as APN 001-013-018 consisting of2,643 square foot parcel 
and thereafter commence the process of advertising for the sale of the remainder of the 
parcel owned by the City pursuant to NRS 268.059 and 268.062. 

I 0. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: Legal Counsel 

12. Council Action: 

13. Council Agenda Distribution: Sue Smales 

01/19/2021 

1400 Sewell Drive 
Elko, NV 89801 
msmalcs(th•I kocounty nv .net 
clkopapatty28(a gmail.com 



~I 
0:: 
0 

_J 
_J w, 
fn 
(f') 

APNI: 001-013-001 
swus 

I 
I 

ff' 001-01 J-002 
WLSON 

~I 

I SAGE STREET I 
_ ---4- __ ...;S==8;::.9' ~'15"E l r , ,~.=-. -=--- - ~ 

( 



Agenda Item V. B. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval of an agreement with the Butch 
Smales Family Revocable Living Trust to mutually rescind the sale of APN 001-013-
018, located generally east of Sewell Drive, south of Walnut Street and north of 
West Sage Street, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: February 11, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes 

5. Background Information: On August 25, 2020, City Council held a public auction for 
the sale of approximately 3,073 square feet of City owned property. During the title 
process, it was determined that approximately 430 square feet of APN 001-013-018 
is not owned by the City of Elko. The City now seeks to enter into an agreement 
with Butch Smales Family Revocable Living Trust to rescind the transaction. CL 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: 
Budget amount available: 
Fund name: 

7. Business Impact Statement: 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Mutual Rescission and Release agreement 

9. Recommended Motion: Approve an agreement with the Butch Smales Family 
Revocable Living Trust to rescind the sale of APN 001-013-018 and authorize the 
Mayor to sign the agreement on behalf of the City. 

10. Prepared by: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: Legal Counsel 

12. Council Action: 

13. Council Agenda Distribution: Sue Smales 

Created on 1/19/2021 

1400 Sewell Drive 
Elko, NV 89801 
msmalcs(a 1clkocountvnv .net 
clkopapattv28(,lgmail.com 

Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



MUTUAL RESCISSION AND RELEASE AGREEMENT 

This Mutual Rescission and Release Agreement (the "Rescission Agreement") is made 
and entered into this_ day of _________ , 2021 (the "Rescission Date") by and 
between the BUTCH SMALES FAMILY REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST, dated 
September 20, 1996, hereinafter called the "Buyer," and the CITY OF ELKO, a municipal 
corporation and body politic within the County of Elko, State of Nevada, hereafter called the 
"Seller." 

WHEREAS, the Seller previously believed in good faith that it owned all right, title and 
interest in and to the following real property, commonly known as Assessor's Parcel Number 
001-013-018: 

A parcel of land in the City of Elko, Nevada, consisting of3,073 square feet, more 
or less, and described at Exhibit A hereto ( entitled "Legal Description") and 
shown on the map at Exhibit B hereto ( entitled "Display Map"). 

The foregoing parcel is hereinafter referred to as the "Property;" 

WHEREAS, at the August 25th, 2020 regular meeting of the Elko City Council, an 
auction for the sale of the Property was held, during which the Buyer made a successful bid to 
purchase the Property; 

WHEREAS, on August 25th
, 2020, the Buyer and Seller executed a Contract of Purchase 

and Sale of the Property; 

WHEREAS, subsequently, the Seller learned of a defect in the title to the Property; 

WHEREAS, the Buyer and Seller have agreed to mutually rescind the purchase and sale 
of the Property; 

WHEREAS, the Seller may hereafter readvertise for sale the portion of the Property to 
which it has clear title; 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the above recitals and for other good 
and valuable consideration, the Buyer and Seller agree as follows: 

1. RESCISSION. The Buyer and Seller hereby rescind the Contract of Purchase 
and Sale of the Property dated August 25th , 2020 ab initio and each party is restored to its 
respective position prior to August 25th, 2020. 

2. MUTUAL RELEASE OF LIABILITY. Effective as of the Rescission Date, 

Page 1 of 3 



each party hereby releases and forever discharges the other party from all causes of action, suits, 
debts, obligations, claims, liabilities and demands whatsoever that it may have regarding the 
Property and the purchase and sale thereof. 

3. READVERTISEMENT AND SALE. The Seller may hereafter readvertise, 
offer for sale and sell the remaining portion of the Property to which it has clear title. 

4. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS. 

A. Time. Time is of the essence of this Rescission Agreement. In the event 
that any date specified in this Rescission Agreement falls on Saturday, Sunday or a public 
holiday, such date shall be deemed to be the succeeding day on which the public agencies and 
major banks are open for business. 

B. Execution of Additional Documents. Seller and Buyer agree to execute 
and/or deliver, or cause to be executed and/or delivered such other documents and/or materials as 
may be reasonably necessary to effect the rescission contemplated by this Rescission Agreement. 

C. Governing Law. The validity, construction and enforceability of this 
Rescission Agreement shall be governed in all respects by the laws of Nevada applicable to 
agreements negotiated, executed and performed in Nevada by Nevada residents, whether one or 
more of the parties shall now be or hereafter become a resident of another state. 

D. Entire Agreement; Modification; Waiver. This Rescission Agreement 
constitutes the entire agreement between Buyer and Seller pertaining to the subject matter 
contained in it and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements, representations and 
understandings in relation thereto. No supplement, modification or amendment of this 
Rescission Agreement shall be binding unless executed in writing by all the parties. No waiver 
of any of the provisions of this Rescission Agreement shall be deemed or shall constitute a 
waiver of any other provision, whether or not similar, nor shall any waiver constitute a 
continuing waiver. No waiver shall be binding unless executed in writing by the party making 
the waiver. 

E. Counterparts. This Rescission Agreement may be executed in one or 
more counterparts, and each counterpart shall constitute an original instrument, but all such 
counterparts shall only constitute one and the same instrument. 

F. Captions. The captions of this Rescission Agreement do not in any way 
limit or amplify the terms and provisions of this Rescission Agreement. 

G. Attorney Fees. In the event of any litigation between the parties hereto 
arising out of this Rescission Agreement, or if one party seeks to judicially enforce the terms of 
this Rescission Agreement, the prevailing party shall be reimbursed for all reasonable costs, 
including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees. 

Page 2 of 3 



H. Non-Assignability. This Rescission Agreement may not be assigned or 
transferred without the express written consent of the non-assigning or non-transferring party. 

I. Severability. Wherever possible, each provision of this Rescission 
Agreement shall be interpreted in such a manner as to be valid under applicable law, but, if any 
provision of this Agreement shall be invalid or prohibited thereunder, such invalidity or 
prohibition shall be construed as if such invalid or prohibited provision had not been inserted 
herein and shall not affect the remainder of such provision or the remaining provisions of this 
Agreement. 

J. Jury Trial Waiver. 

TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, THE PARTIES 
KNOWINGLY AND FREELY WAIVE ANY RIGHT THEY MAY HA VE 
TO A JURY TRIAL OF ANY CLAIM OR CAUSE OF ACTION BASED 
UPON OR ARISING OUT OF THIS RESCISSION AGREEMENT. THE 
PARTIES ACKNOWLEDGE AND REPRESENT THAT THE RIGHT TO 
A JURY TRIAL IS AN IMPORTANT RIGHT, THAT EACH HAS 
REVIEWED THIS WAIVER WITH LEGAL COUNSEL OF ITS OWN 
CHOOSING, OR HAS HAD AN OPPORTUNITY TO DO SO, THAT THIS 
PROVISION IS A MATERIAL AND NEGOTIATED TERM OF THIS 
RESCISSION AGREEMENT, THAT EACH PARTY WOULD NOT 
ENTER INTO THIS RESCISSION AGREEMENT BUT FOR THE JURY 
TRIAL WAIVER, AND THAT EACH PROVIDES THIS WAIVER 
HAVING HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO CONSULT WITH LEG AL 
COUNSEL OF ITS CHOOSING. 

SELLER: BUYER: 

CITY OF ELKO 

By: ------------
REECE KEENER, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

KELLY WOOLDRIDGE, City Clerk 

BUTCH SMALES FAMILY 
REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST, dated 
September 20, 1996 

By: 
SUE B. SMALES, BY DAVID 
MICHAEL SMALES AS 
ATTORNEY-IN-FACT FOR 
SUE B. SMALES AS TRUSTEE 

Page 3 of 3 



Agenda Item V. C. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to accept the 2020 Annual Report of 
Planning Commission Activities, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE 
ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: February 11, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 

5. Background Information: Pursuant to City Code Section 3-4-23, the Planning 
Commission is required to prepare and present an Annual Report of its activities to 
Council. On February 2, 2021, the Planning Commission took action to approve the 
2020 Annual Report of Planning Commission Activities and forward it to the Council. 
CL 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: NI A 
Budget amount available: N/A 
Fund name: N/ A 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: 2020 Annual Report of Planning Commission 
Activities 

9. Recommended Motion: Accept the 2020 Annual Report of Planning Commission 
Activities 

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: Planning Commission 

12. Council Action: 

13. Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 2/l /2021 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



City of Elko 
-Planning Commission-

2020 Annual Report 

Chairman Jeff Dailing 

Vice-Chairman Evi Buell 

Secretary Tera Hooiman 

Commissioner John Anderson 

Commissioner Gratton Miller 

Commissioner Stefan Beck 

Commissioner Giovanni Puccinelli 



APPLICATIONS 
PROCESSED 

A summary of the tasks and accomplishments of the City 
of Elko Planning Commission for the 2020 calendar year: 

A1rnlication 2020 2019 2018 
Annexations 0 l* 1 

Boundary Line Adjustments (admin.) 5 6 0 

Conditional Use Permits 4 13* 7* 

Appeals (City Council) l 1 0 

Curb, Gutter, Sidewalk Waivers O (C.C.) 2 (C.C.) 2 (C.C) 

Detachments 0 1* 0 

Home Occupation Permits (admin.) 31 42 53* 

Land Sales/Leases/Acquisitions (C.C.) 5 1 0 

Parcel Maps (mostly administrative) 9 9 10 

Parking Waivers 0 0 2 

Reversions to Acreage (City Council) 0 0 1 

Revocable Permits (mostly City Council) 4 1 5 

Rezones 6 5 8 

Site Plan Reviews 0 0 2 

Subdivisions 

Pre-Applications, Stage l 3 7 4 

Tentative Maps 3 5 3 

Final Maps 6 4 7 

Temporary Sign Clearances (admin.) 2 4 2 

Temporary Use Permits 1 1 2* 

Vacations 4* 12* 4 

Variances 4 4 13* 

Appeals (City Council) 0 0 1 

* see next page TOTAL 88 119 127 



APPLICATIONS 
PROCESSED Cont. 

Application 

Annexations 

Conditional Use Permits 

Detachments 

Home Occupation Permits (admin.) 

Temporary Use Permits 

Vacations 

Variances 

1 - 2019 Annexation application 
withdrawn by applicant 

1- 2018 Conditional Use Permit Transfer 
from 2003 

1- 2018 Conditional Use Permit Transfer 
from 1986 

1 - 2019 Conditional Use Permit Transfer 
from 1995 

1- 2019 Detachment application 
withdrawn by applicant 

l - 2018 application withdrawn 

1 - 2018 application withdrawn 

8 - 2019 applications for the City of Elko 
NO CHARGE 

J - 2020 application pending 

J - 2018 application refunded 



INTERACTION WITH and SUPPORT OF 
the 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
and the 

EDEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COUNCIL 

► Analyzed applications within th_e Redevelopment 
Area for general conformance with the 
Redevelopment Plan. 

► Cathy Laughlin, as Redevelopment Manager, keeps 
the Planning Commission informed of 
redevelopment happenings in her monthly reports. 
In addition, Commissioner Dailing is a member of 
the Redevelopment Advisory Council. 



CITYOFELKO 
MASTER PLAN and other 

PROJECT PLANS 

Zoning revisions or clarification on properties 
throughout the City of Elko. (Ongoing) 

Review zoning for the RMH districts, revise map. (In 
progress) 

Master Plan Amendment No. 1-20 - Amend Atlas 
Map 8, Land Use Component, Transportation 
Component, & Atlas Maps 11 & 12 

Master Plan Amendment No. 2-20 - Amend Atlas 
Map 8 on S 5th Street & Amend Land Use Component 
by adding RO District to Downtown Mixed Use 

Master Plan Amendment No. 3-20 - Amend Atlas 
Map 8 on 6 parcels near W. Cedar & D Street, 1 
parcel on Front Street, & 1 parcel on Ruby Vista & 
College Parkway. 

I 

__J 



PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
FILING FEES COLLECTED 

Annexations 
Boundary Line Adjustments 
Conditional Use Permits 
Curb, Gutter and Sidewalk 

Waivers 
Home Occupation Permits 
Parking Waivers 
Parcel Maps 
Reversions to Acreage 
Revocable Permits 
Rezones 
Subdivisions 
Temporary Use Permits 
Vacations 
Variances 

2020 
$0 

$ 800 
$3,325 

$0 

$1,550 
$0 

$2,275 
$0 

$1,600 
$1,000 

$ 11,450 
$ 300 

$2,400 
$ 1,500 

2019 
$0 

$1,200 
$9,375 

$ 500 

$2,100 
$0 

$ 2,225 
$0 

$ 400 
$ 2,500 

$ 13,200 
$ 300 

$ 2,400 
$ 1,750 

TOTAL FEES COLLECTED FOR 2020 
$26,200 

2019 - $35,950 ( difference of -$9, 750) 



Agenda Item VI. A. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible adoption of Resolution No. 07-21, a 
resolution of the City Council approving the lease of real property less than 25,000 
square feet, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: February 11, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: RESOLUTION 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 

5. Background Information: Plaza Forty, LLC previously held a Lease Agreement to 
use City of Elko property located at Well Site #12, adjacent to 1900 Idaho Street, for 
parking. The agreement expired November 12, 2018, but Plaza Forty, LLC has 
continued paying the monthly lease. Plaza Forty, LLC desires to continue utilizing 
the City property for parking. NRS 268.064 provides that the governing body may 
lease the property without an appraisal or public offering if the property is less than 
25,000 square feet and a Resolution has been adopted finding that the proposed 
lease is in the best interest of the City. Resolution No. 07-21 begins the process for 
the continued lease. MR 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: NI A 
Budget amount available: NIA 
Fund name: NIA 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Resolution, Application, Previous Lease 
Agreement 

9. Recommended Motion: Adopt Resolution No. 07-21 

10. Prepared by: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: City Attorney 

12. Council Action: 

13. Agenda Distribution: Plaza Forty, LLC 
Attn: Gerald Ross 
P.O. Box 2178 

Created on 2/2/2021 

Newport Beach, CA 92659 
plazafortyllc@gmail.com 

Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



CITY OF ELKO 
RESOLUTION NO. 7-21 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ELKO CITY COUNCIL 
APPROVING THE LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY 

LESS THAN 25,000 SQUARE FEET 

WHEREAS, Nevada Revised Statute 268.064 provides that, subject to meeting publication 
requirements and conducting a public hearing, the governing body of a city may offer any city-owned 
building or any portion thereof or any other real property for lease without complying with the provisions 
of NRS 268.059, 268.061, and 268.062 if: (a) the area of the building space or other real property is less 
than 25,000 square feet; and (b) the governing body adopts a resolution stating that it is in the best 
interest of the city to lease the property: (1) without offering the property to the public; and (2) for less 
than the fair market value of the building space or other real property, if applicable. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Nevada Revised Statute 268.064, a lease of a city-owned building or any 
portion thereof or any other real property may be made on such terms and conditions as the governing 
body of the city deems proper; provided, the duration of such a lease must not exceed 3 years and may 
include an extension for not more than an additional 2 years. 

WHEREAS, the Elko City Council has received and reviewed the Application for Sale or Lease of 
City Owned Land submitted by Plaza Forty, LLC for the lease of the following-described real property: 

A Parcel located in the NE ¼ SW¼ of Section 11, Township 34 North, Range 55 East of the MDB&M Elko 
County, Nevada being City Well site number 12 and described as follows: Beginning at the center of said 
Section 11, Township 34 North, Range 55 East, a point which is located 981.39' at a bearing of N36°55'18" 
E from the true point of beginning, corner 1. From the point of beginning thence S 58°37'00" Ea distance 
of 108.00' to corner 2; Thence S31°22'55" W a distance of 96.96' to corner 3; Thence N58°37'00" W a 
distance of 108.00' to corner 4; Thence N31 °22'55" E a distance of 96.96' to the point of beginning 
containing 10,471.87 SF. 

The total lease area shall be 10,471.87 SF, less the square footage of Well 12, being 700 SF, for a total 
lease area of 9,771.87 SF. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED BY THE ELKO CITY COUNCIL that, in 
accordance with NRS 268.064(2)(a), the City Clerk is hereby directed to have published at least once, in a 
newspaper qualified under Chapter 238 of NRS that is published in Elko County, a notice setting forth a 
description of the Property to be leased; and 

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be effective and shall be in force immediately 
upon adoption, and that upon adoption of this Resolution by the Elko City Council it shall be signed by the 
Mayor and attested to by the City Clerk. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of February, 2021. 



ATTEST: 

KELLY WOOLDRIDGE, CITY CLERK 

VOTE: 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

CITY OF ELKO 

By:. _____________ _ 

REECE KEENER, MAYOR 



CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
1751 College Avenue• Elko• Nevada • 89801 "(775) 

777-7160 * (775) 777-7219 fax 

APPLICATION FOR SALE OR LEASE OF CITY OWNED LAND 

APPLICANT s Plaza Forty, LL C 
ADDRESS PO Box 2178, Newport Beach, CA 92659 

PHONE NO (Home 949) 723-4637 (Business,...._94_9 __ )_7_2_3_-4_6_3_7 __ F~ax=4-94_9_) 5_7_4_-2_9_94___, 

I, the undersigned applicant, hereby requests the Elko City Council advertise for sale or lease, by sealed 
bid/public auction on tenns/or cash, a parcel of land owned by the City of Elko and further described below: 
ASSESSORS PARCEL#, LEGAL DESCRIPTION, AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY: (Attach ifnecessarv): 
Subj~ Property: APN 001-590-008 (City's Water Pump Station & 21 parking spaces), 1924 Idaho Street, Elko, NV 89801 

j\ppll(;al'll'I Neighboring Propelty: APN 001-590-017; Parcel #1 ol Pa"'91 Map for City of Elko, as llled in !he Elko County, NV Recon:lets ollice on 10/1411986, Doc. 220695 

rAttach a small she planJ 

FILING REQUIREMENTS: 
I) In order to begin processing the request, an Application for Sale or Lease of City Owned Land must be 

completed and signed. 

2) There is no filing fee at this time, however applicants are required to deposit a sufficient amount of money to pay 
the costs to be incurred by the City of Elko in acting upon the application. These costs include the expense of 
the appraisal and associated publications. The deposit amount will be determined on a case-by-case basis. 
Applicants shall be notified of the deposit amount required to process the application. 

3) Successful bidders shall be responsible for the costs of acting upon the application. If someone other than the 
applicant is the successful bidder. the costs will be obtained from the successful bidder and the money deposited 
by the applicant will be refunded. 

4) If costs exceed the original deposit amount, successful bidders shall pay the difference. If costs are less than the 
deposit, successful bidders shall be refunded the difference. Deposits shall only be returned to non-successful 
bidders. Applicants who fail to submit a bid on the property forfeit their deposit. 

5) The notice of sale or lease of the property must be advertised by Public Notice once a week for three (3) 
successive weeks in a local newspaper. All bids must conform to the notice of land sale or lease and must be 
filed in the Office of the City Clerk in a sealed envelope prior to the time set for receiving bids. Anyone, 
including anyone not submitting a bid, may raise the offer by five percent (5%) at the time of the auction and the 
auction will proceed accordingly. 

APPLICANT'S PRINTED NA Gerald Ross, Managing Member 

omCE USE ONL y 

FIie No.: ______ .Date Filed: __________ .Deposit Paid: ___________ _ 



J11 TH 

J''l7<9.~ 
S' "'✓ a 
srqoo. c;,~ 

TOTAL PARCEL AREA = 88,118 sq. ft.55p 

24,667 sq.ft, 
FF"' 5080.50' 

50 25 0 50 

1' CONTOUR INTERVAL 

/ 



"\ ---~ 
-~ 
~ 

MUNiClPAL PARK ,mti 

... -<~ 

·, 

// 
/ 

~,.··· 
, .. / 

•..,•' 

_./•\ 
i 

-~ 
/ 

\ t"': ... 
. '0' 

,71,,_.·, 
/ ,~·-

;' ,1,·· 
I ,~• 

// / __ .. / .. --:.~ij '-:_ --· 
',, @/ __ .,,-·,1: '. 

.• , _./ Elk001 , •. -· 
'- ./ Pg510 '. 

'·-<•" .,.), 

.~LAY GRoti./\10 

\\ ,.,, .... \. \ 

\,..' 

' ,·'\ 
\>• 

~ 
~ 

5,-'\· 

<;;;. \].~-~-.... 

,..
\ 

\ 

\ 

-, 

\ 

•. 

'-

,. ,,. 

·-.1, .. 

~. 

~- -t;:.--·, 
~ 

Z' 6l · ""~ .... - .. 
./IJ""J.'~ 

~ 

001-590 

CITY OF ELKO 

"' 

I 
SEC. 13; T34N; R55E 

200 400 

r..., 

legend 
CJ Subject Parcel 

; _ :·· .,. , Pere.el 

RefM&111?- ~monl-s: 
P1rce1 Mup II 162307. 220095 
Doc I 581665, 6112A9 
D•-62007C 

F-m' ~SO&-\i\"ICOt IJ~e Q;~~·. @.?I ,i.ot 
rept~nl Q .'i\.lty5!{. I~ liflt'l~{W 
tor ai;r.ttrar;.y I! aac:urFffl'. O{k\t1r 

VIC$ ;:,rl)i(l(iet'li Llf'lld:i:1 appr.c\Ntd by 
af,;Q County ~.S$eti.O; 

\.all R..iae~, IW~009 Ju; 

I 



! ' 

CITY OF ELKO 
Office of the City Clerk Website: www.elkocity.com 

Email: cityclerk@ci.elko.nv.us 

1751 CollegeAvenue • Elko,Nevada 89801 • (775)777-7126 · Fax(775)777-7129 

Plaza Forty, LLC 
P.O. Box2178 
Newport Beach, CA 92659 

SUBJECT: Plaza Forty, LLC 

Dear Ed Murphy, 

September 1, 2016 

The City of Elko received your request to extend the Lease Agreement betwtien the City 
of Elko and Plaza Forty, LLC. The new expiration date for the lease is November 12, 2018. 

Please feel free to contact me regarding any questions. I can be reached at (775) 777-
7126. 

Sincerely, 

->~~{(tl-1,~ 
Shanell Owen, MMC 
City Clerk/freasurer 



Shanell Owen 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

City of Elko Nevada 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

Ed Murphy <edmurphyl@gmail.com> 
Tuesday, August 30, 20161:47 PM 
Shanell Owen 
Lease Option 

Re; Land Lease on parcel #001-590-008. 
According to the Lease dated November 12, 2013, which Is due to expire on November12, 2016. 
Plaza Forty, LLC, the Lessee, has the Option of extending the Lease for an additional two(2) years. 
Please consider this email to be notification of our exceptance of the two year extension. 
Any questions please call 949-574-2990. 
Regards, 
Ed Murphy, 
Managing Member 
Plaza Forty, LLC 

t 



Diann Byington 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Diann Byington 
Monday, September 14, 2015 2:43 PM 
'assessor@elkocountynv.net' 
Parcel00l-590-008 
Plaza Forty - assignment for Hawkins-Smith.pdf 

Attached Is a Consent to Assignment of a Lease Asreement. Plaza Forty, LLC has bought Hawkins-Smith and as a result, 
Plaza Forty will be responsible for taxes on the parcel number Indicated above. I show the address for Plaza Forty, LLC to 
be: P.O. Box 2178, Newport Beach, CA 92659. 

If you have any questions regarding the foregoing do not hesitate to contact me. 

Thank you, 

&1onn{fif~ 
Recording Secretary 
Cityof Elko 
775-777-7127 

1 



CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION 
OF LEASE AGREEMENT 

THIS CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF LEASE 
AGREEMENT (hereinafter the "Consent"), is given this ~ day of Q.i~ • 
2015 by the CITY OF ELKO, a municipal corporation and political subdivion of the State of 
Nevada, duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Nevada, hereinafter called 
the "City," HAWKINS-SMITH, hereinafter caJled "Assignor," and PLAZA FORTY, LLC, a 
Nevada Corporation, hereinafter called "Assignee." 

WHEREAS, Assignor entered into a Lease Agreement with the City dated November 
12, 2013 for a three (3) year term; and 

WHEREAS, the Lease Agreement is for 9,771.87 sq. ft., Parcel 001-590-008 within the 
City of Elko; and 

WHEREAS, the term of the Lease has not yet expired; and 

WHEREAS, the Lease Agreement may be assigned and assumed subject to the 
prior written consent of the City; and 

WHEREAS, the City agrees that the Lease Agreement may be assigned to and assumed 
by Assignee. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City hereby grants its Consent to the assignment of the Lease 
Agreement to Assignee, conditional upon its assumption of all duties and obligations thereunder. 
The Assignment and Assumption of Lease Agreement between Assignor and Assignee is 
subjoined hereto. 

DATEDthis 11-ib dayof ~ , 2015. 

CITY OF ELKO 

1 



ATTEST: 

SHANELL OWEN, CITY CLERK 

ASSIGNMENT AND ASSUMPTION OF LEASE AGREEMENT 

Assignor hereby assigns to Assignee, and Assignee hereby assumes from Assignor, all 
rights, duties and obliga\ions arising under the Lease Agreement. 

ASSIGNOR: 

HAWKINS-SMITH 

Date: -----------
ASSIGNEE: 

PLAZA FORTY, LLC 

Date: -----------

2 



ATTEST: 

SHANELL OWEN, CITY CLERK 

AS§UfflMENT AND ASSUMnION OF LEASE AGREEMENT 

Assignor hcieby assigns to Assignee, and Assignee hereby assumes from Assignor, all 
rights, duties and obligations arising under the Lease Agreement. 

ASSIGNOR: 

ASSIGNEE: 

~44 
Date: $, ( /,S:

~; 

2 



I I HAWKINS 
COMPANIES 

COMMERCIAL DEVELOPERS 

July 23, 2015 

Elko City Clerk 
Attn: Shanell 
1751 College Avenue 
Elko, NV 89801 

RE: Plaza 40 Lease 
1910 Idaho Street 

Dear Ms. Owen, 

Hawkins Smith an Idaho General Partnership is in the process of selling the property at 1910 Idaho Street In Elko 
NV. We are looking to assign the Lease between Hawkins Smith and The City Of Elko. The new owner will be 
Plaza Forty LLC, a Nevada Corporation, and the closing is scheduled for August 12, 2015. 

Please let us know If you have any questions and what we need to do to Assign this Lease. Thank you for your 
time. 

Sincerely, 

J/ kb-ua- (j,,fu,pjf,, 

Victoria Johnscl CPM• 
Property Manager 



LEASEAGREEMENT 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT, made and entered into this J).. ,.\6 clay of 
}iltn,..ldb.bl-:L, 2013, by and between THE CITY OF ELKO, a municipal corporation 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Nevada, hereinafter ref erred to as 
"Lessor," and Hawkins-Smith, an Idal10 general partnership, hereinafter referred to as 
"Lessee". 

WITNF8SEIH 

For and in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, and subject to 
ratification and approval of the City of Elko through its City Council, Lessor does hereby 
rent, demise, let and lease unto Lessee the property described in Section 1.01 upon die 
terms and conditions hereinafter set forth: 

ARTICLE!. 
DF$CRIPI10N OF REAL PROPERTY 

Section 1.01. Description: Lessor leases to Lessee that certain real property 
located in the City of Elko, State of Nevada, more particularly shown or described.on the 
map and legal description attached hereto as Exhibit "A", specifically defined as 10,471 sq. 
ft. minus die square footage of Well 12, being 700 sq. ft., resulting in a total lease area of 
9771.87 sq. ft, Parcel 001-590-008 within the City of Elko. The foregoing is herein 
referred to as the "Property" or the "Leased Premises." All property leased to Lessee 
under this Lease shall be maintained by Lessee. In addition, any access points on the 
Property shall be maintained by Lessee. 

Section 1.02. Tu.rm:. 

(a) The initial tem1 of this Lease shall commence on the date this 
agreement is executed by the Mayor and shall continue for a period of three years (the 
"Initial Tenn"). 

(b) At the expiration of the Initial Tenn, Lessee shall have the option to 
extend the lease for an additional two year period. To exercise said option Lessee must 
notify Lessor in writing of its election to exercise this option not sooner d1an 120 days 
before the expiration of the Initial Tenn nor later than 60 days prior to die expiration of 
the Initial Tenn. In the event of such extension, the tenns and conditions of this lease shall 
aJ>ply. 

Section 1.03: Delivery of Possession. 

(a) Lessor shall put Lessee into physical possession of the Leased 
Premises upon the Mayor's execution of this lease. 

1 



(b) Lessor makes no representations concerning any use of the Leased 
Premises during Lessor's ownership of the l£ased Premises regarding whether Hazardous 
Substances were deposited, stored, disposed of or placed upon, about or under the Leased 
Premises. 

Section 1.04. Improvements: Lessee shall not construct any improvements upon 
die leased premises wid1out die prior written approval of Lessor. In die event any 
improvements are authorized or Lessee undertakes any maintenance of the Leased 
premises, such work shall meet all of Lessor's applicable standards. 

ARTICLEll. 
REN:r 

Section 2.01. Amount: Lessee shaU pay rent for tl1e Leased Premises as follows: 

(a) Monthly rent shall be calculated based at 29 cents per square foot of 
tbe leased premises per year. TI1e square footage of the premises is 9,771.87 square feet. 

(b) Montldy rent of $236. lS shall be due and payable on tlie first day of 
each month in advance during die lease from Lessee to Lessor. In die event the 1£ase 
begins or tenninates resulting in less than one month of occupancy, Lessee shall pay a pro 
rata portion of a month's rent, which sum shall be due and payable at the beginning of such 
month or within .5 days of the execution of this Lease or any exlension diereot: 

(c) Until furtl1er notice by Lessor to Lessee, rent checks shall be 
payable to and mailed to: 

City of Elko, c/o City Clerk's Office 
1751 College Ave. 
Elko, NV 89801 

Section 2.02. Additional Assessments and Charges: In addition to die rent payable 
under this section, Lessee shall pay and discharge promptly as the same become due and 
before delinquency all taxes and assessments, whether general or special, of every kind 
which may be levied or assessed or become a lien on or against die leasehold of Lessee. 

ARTICLEID. 
USE OF PROPERTY 

Section 8.01. ~ TI1e Property may be used by Lessee for parking and/or 
ingress egress purposes only. Lessee agrees to restrict die use of the Property to such uses 
unless obtaining prior written consent of Lessor to use the Property in any other manner. 

2 



ARTICLE IV. 
CONSTRUCTION IMPROVEMENTS 

Section 4.01. Conmlia.nce with Laws: All construction, work, improvements, and 
alterations thereto, to the Property by Lessee or its agents, shall be done in good and 
workmanlike manner and in full compliance with all applicable local, stale and federal laws, 
regulations and codes applicable to d1e use to which the Property will be put by Lessee. All 
such work shall be done in a good and workmanlike manner, free and clear of liens for 
labor and materials fumished Lessee. 

ARTICLEV. 
REPAIRS AND DF.STRUCTION OF PROPERTY 

Section 5.01. Maintenance of Improvements: Lessee shall, throughout the tem1 of 
this Lease, at their own cost. and without any expense to Lessor, keep and maintain die 
Property, including all improvements of every kind which may be a part thereof: and all 
appurtenances diereto, in good, sanitary and neat order, condition and repair, and expect 
as specifically provided herein, restore and rehabilitate any improvements of any kind 
which may be destroyed or damaged by fire, casualty or any other cause whatsoever. 

ARTICLE VI. 
COMPLIANCE Wffli LAWS/WASTE 

Section 6.01. Applicable L1.ws: During the tenn of this Lease, Lessee shall comply 
with all city, county, state and federal and other applicable laws affecting the Property. 

Section 6.02. Waste, Nuisance or Unlawful Activities: Lessee shall not commit, or 
allow to be committed, any waste on the Property, create or allow a nuisance to exist on die 
Property or use or allow die Property to be used for any unlawful purpose. 

Section 6.03. Limited Environmental Indemnity: If it is detennined by a 
governmental agency with jurisdiction that as a result of L!ssee's activities in operating d1e 
Property diat there is a violation of any Environmental Law and such governmental agency 
requires a cleanup or remediation program on the Property, Lessee will indemnify Lessor 
from expenses resulting from that cleanup or remediation program. 

ARTICLEVIl. 
ITrILfI'IRq 

Section 7.01. Payment by Lessee: With regard to t11e Property, Lessee shall pay 
for all associated utilities, if any. 

3 



ARTICLEVIII. 
SIGNS, ~SEE'S FIXTURES 

Section 8.01. Lessee shall not install and operate interior and exterior electric and 
od1er signs and advertising matter, machinery and other mechanical equipment on the 
Property. 

Section 8.02. lessee shall at all times have die right to remove all fixtures, 
machinery, equipment, appurtenances and other property furnished or installed by Lessee 
at Lessee's expense provided the Property is retumed to the original state. 

ARTICLEIX 
ALTERATIONS 

Section 9.01. Except as provided herein, at any time and from time to time, 
1.A::ssee, at lessee's cost and expense and in compliance with applicable law, may 
reconfigure or od1erwise modify the site i111provements as Lessee deems necessary or 
appropriate. "' 

Section 9.02. lessor covenants and agrees that during the continuance of dli.s 
uase, I.asor shall not, without Lessee's express written consent, make any alterations or 
additions to the Leased Premises. 

ARTICLEX. 
1,TENS 

Section 10.01. Prohibition against Liens: Lessee shall keep the Property free and 
clear from all mechanics' and materialmen's liens and other liens and encwnbrances. 

ARTICLEXI. 
INDEMNIFICATION OF T.F,$SOR 

Section I 1.01. Indemnification: lessor shall not be liable for any loss, injury, 
death or damage to persons or property which at any time may be suffered or sustained by 
Lessor by any person whomsoever may at any time be using or occupying or visiting the 
Property or be in, on or about die same, whetl1er such loss, injury, dead1 or damage shall 
be caused by or in any way result from or arise out of any act, omission, or negligence of 
Lessee or of any occupant, visitor, or user of any portion of the premises, or shall result 
from or be caused by any other matter or thing whed1er of the same kind as or of a 
different kind d1an the matters or things above set ford1, and Lessee shall indemnify Lessor 
against all claims, liability, loss or damage whatsoever on account of any such loss, injury, 
death or damages. lessee hereby waive all claims against Lessor for damages to 
improvements that shall be hereafter placed or built on die Property and to die property of 
Lessee in, on or about the Properly, and for iitjuries to persons or property in or about the 
Property from any cause arising at any time during the term hereof. The two preceding 

4 



sentences shall not apply to loss, injury, death or damage arising by reason of the 
negligence or intentional misconduct of Lessor, its agents or employees. 

Section 11.02. Insurance Liability: Lessee shall procure and maintain in force 
during the tenn of this Lease and any extension thereof, at Lessee's expense, public liability 
insurance adequate to protect Lessee and Lessor against liability for damage claims though 
public use or arising out of accidents occurring in or around die Property in a minimum 
amount of $1,000,000 for each person injured; $2,000,000 for any one accident; and 
$500,000 for property damage. Lessee agrees to obtain a written obligation from insurers 
to notify Lessor in writing at least durty (30) days J>rior to cancellation or refusal lo renew 
any such policies. Lessee agree that if such insurance policies are not kept in force during 
die entire Lenn of this lease or any extension diereof, Lessor may procure die necessary 
insurance and pay the premium thereof, and that such premium shall be repaid to Lessor 
as an additional rent installment. 1lie proceeds from Lessee's casualty insurance hereunder 
shall be paid and aJ>plied only as detennined by Lessee. 

ARTICLEXIl. 
ASSIGNMENT AND SUB-LETI'ING 

Section 12.01. Lessee shall not assign or sublet all or any portion of this lease 
without the prior written approval of Lessor. 

ARTICLEXIIl. 
CASUALTY 

Section 13.01. If the Property shall be damaged or destroyed by fire or odier 
casualt;y, then Lessee at its option and sole cost and expense may repair and restore tl1e 
same to such condition as Lessee deems necessary or desirable (with such changes as 
Lessee deems appropriate), and in the event of such restoration, the fixed rent and all 
otl1er charges shall abate proportionately according to the extent of such damage or 
destruction; such abatement shall include a period reasonably necessary for Lessee to 
perfonn and complete such restoration. Lessee's repair and restoration (if any) shall be 
subject to then applicable legal requirements. If Lessee elects not' to repair and restore the 
Leased Premises as herein provided, Lessee shall remove tlie damaged portions of the site 
improvements. If Lessee elects not to rebuild and restore the Leased Premises as herein 
provided, and such casualty has resulled in damage or destruction lo fifty percent (50%) or 
more ofd1e Property, then Lessee may cancel this Lease. 

ARTICLE XIV. 
INGRF.8S AND EGRESS 

Section 14.01. Lessor further reserves the right to itself and its assigns to enter 
upon tlie Property for die purpose of constructing, maintaining, and repairing any right-of
ways and casements which may be placed or constructed or any utilities which exist or may 
be constructed in the future. 

5 



ARTICLEXV. 
DEFAULT 

Section 15.01. If any fixed rent is due and remains unJ>aid for ten (10) days after 
the date it is due, or if Lessee breaches any of the other covenants of this Lease and if such 
other breach continues for thirty (30) days after receipt of notice from Lessor, Lessor shall 
then have all legal rights and remedies available at law or equity and sud1 default shall 
constitute grounds for tennination of this lease, in the sole discretion of Lessor. 

Section 15.02. If Lessor shall fail to perfonn any act or acts required of Lessor by 
this Lease and if such failure continues for ninety (90) days after receipt of notice from 
Lessee, Lessee shall then have the right to terminate this lease and exercise all its rights and 
remedies at law or equity. If Lessor shall in good faith within said ninety (90) days 
commence to correct such breach, and diligently proceed therewith to completion, then 
Lessor shall not be considered in default. 

Section 15.03. No delay on the part of either party in enforcing any of die 
provisions of this Lease shall be considered as a waiver thereof. Any consent or approval 
granted by either party under this Lease must be in writing and shall not be deemed to 
waive or render unnecessary the obtaining of consent or approval with respect to any 
subsequent act or omission for which consent is required or sought. 

ARTICLE XVI. 
TITLE AND POSSESSION 

Section 16.01. Lessor represents that Lessor has foe simple title to die Leased 
Premises and the right to make this Lease. 

Section 16.02. Lessee may record a Memorandum of Lease concerning this 
agreement. 

ARTICLE XVII. 
CONDITION OF THE PROPER1Y ON TERMINATION 

Section 17.01. Lessee' Oblig:c1tions: On tennination or cancellation of this Lease 
for any cause, or upon the natural expiration of this Lease, Lessee, at their sole expense, 
must remove any personal property stored on the Property and restore the Property to its 
original state. If all personal property is not removed by said .date, Lessee agrees to pay the 
City of Flko liquidated damages in the amount of $100 per day for, each day any of the 
personal property is not removed from the Property. HOWEVER, Lessor shall have tl1e 
option of waiving this requirement, in writing, as to any and all improvements Lessor 
desires to remain in place. 

6 



ARTICLE XVIII. 
MISQEJ.J,ANEOUS PROVISIONS 

Section 18.01. Waiver: The waiver by Lessor of its right to declare a forfeiture or 
pursue any other remedy pursuant to tltis Lease upon any default on tl1e part of Lessee 
shall not violate any provision therefore herein contained, nor constitute a waiver of such 
right in connection with any future default, or any other obligation of Lessee herein 
contained to be done and perf onned. 

Section 18.02. ln§pection: Lessor, by its officers, employees or od1er aud1orized 
agents, shall have the right to enter upon the Property at any and all reasonable time during 
the tenn hereof for the purpose of informing itself as to the compliance by Lessee of the 
terms, covenants and conditions of d1is Lease to be kept upon its part. 

Section 18.03'. ~: Whenever in this Lease it shall be required or permitted 
that notice be given by either party to this Lease or to the other, such notice must be in 
writing and must be given personally or forwarded by certified mail addressed as follows: 

u:ssor: 

Lessee: 

City of Elko 
City Manager 
1751 College Avenue 
Elko, NV 89801 

Hawkins-Smith 
855 Broad St., Suite 300 
Boise, ID 83702 

Such addresses may be changed from time to time by notice given hereunder. 

Section 18.04. Binding Effect: TIIis Lease shall be binding upon, and insure to the 
benefit of, and shall apply to the respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and 
assigns of Lessor and Lessee and all references in this Lease to Lessor and Lessee shall be 
deemed to refer to and include successors and assigns of Lessor and Lessee wid1out 
specific mention of successors or assigns. 

Section 18.05. Time of Essence: Time is of the essence of this Lease and all of its 
provisions. 

Section I 8.06. Attomey Fees: In die event of litigation, the prevailing party shall 
be entitled to recover reasonable attorney's fees and expenses, together with cost of suit. 

Section 18.07. Captions: The captions contained herein are inserted only for 
convenience of reference and are in no way to be construed as part of the agreement or as 
a limitation on die scope of die particular paragraph to which d1ey refer. 

7 



Section 18.08. Quiet Enjoyment: Lessee shall have the quiet and peaceable 
possession of the Property during the tenn hereof. 

Section 18.09. Governing Law and lurjsdiction: The validity, construction and 
enforceability of this Lease shall be governed in all respects by die Jaw of Nevada 
applicable to agreements negotiated, executed and performed in Nevada by Nevada 
residents, whether one or more of the parties shall now be or hereafter become a resident 
of anod1er state. Jurisdiction for any action regarding this uase shall be the applicable 
state court in Elko County, Nevada. 

Section 18.10. Entire Agreement; Modification; Waiver: This Lease constitutes 
tbe entire agreement between Lessor and Lessee pertaining to the subject matter contained 
in it and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements, representations and 
understandings. No supplement, modification or amendment of this L:ase shall be 
binding unless executed in writing by all the parties. No waiver of any of d1e provisions of 
d1is Lease shall he deemed or shall constitute a continuing waiver. No waiver shall be 
binding unless executed in writing by the parties making the waiver. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set d1eir hands die year and 
date first above written. 

LESSOR: LESSEE: 

THE CITY Cf ELKO 

Br- ft( (},;/ . 
CHlUSJ.JOHks6N, Mayor 

HAWKINS - SMITH 

ATTEST: 

SHANEI.L OWEN, City Clerk 

8 



EXHIBIT A 

9 



CITY Of ELKO 
ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT 

1755 COLLEGE AVENUE 
ELKO, NEVADA 89801 

(775)777-7210 
(775)777-7219 FAX 

Tho following legal dc:acription shall be used for a lease agreement for parcel 001-590-008. 

A Parcel located In the Nf!l/4 SW 16 of Scc:tlon I 1, Township 3◄ North, Range 55 East of the 
MDB&M Elko County, Nevada being City Well site number 12 and described as follows: 
Be&iMlna at the center of uid Section 11, Township 3◄ North, Range 55 East, a point which is 
located 981.39' at abcarinaofN36° ss• 18" E from thctrucpointofbeginning, comer I. From 
the point of beginning thence S58° 37' OO"E a distance oflOB.OO' lo comer 2; Thence S31° 22' 
55" W a distance of96,96' to corner 3; Thence NS8° 37' OO''W a distance of 108.00' to comer 4; 
Thence N3 IO 22' SS"E a distance of96.96' to the point ofbcgiMing containing 10,471.87 SF. 

The total lease area shall be 10,471.87 SF less the square footage ofWell 12, being 700 SF, for a 
total lease areaof9,771.87 SF 

U:'ICI..ERK\Wcll l2 uuc Dac:riplion.docx 
CmMdb)'1-yDnipar 

10 



,<..,j 
,Pl 

f
-~ 
. 

:-... 
~ 

!' 

NO. REVISION DATE 

APPROVED BY• 

I 

001-!190•008 

PARCEL 001-590-008 
LEASE AREA 

S£CTJDN 

DRA\olJNG ND. 

DAT£ PAGE 
08/12/1 

11 



Agenda Item VI. B. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval of Resolution No. 08-21, a 
resolution authorizing the expenditure of funds by the Redevelopment Agency from 
its Special Revenue Fund in the amount of $675,000, for the work proposed for the 
4th, 5th, and 6th Street Block Ends Project, and matters related thereto. FOR 
POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: February 11. 2021 

3. Agenda Category: RESOLUTION 

4. Time Required: 10 Minutes 

5. Background Information: RDA approved the Block Ends Project as Project 3 of 
Phase 1 at their February 14, 2017 meeting. As per the Redevelopment Plan, 
Council must give consent on the expenditures. CL 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: $675,000.00 
Budget amount available: 
Fund name: Redevelopment Agency 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Resolution No. 08-21 

9. Recommended Motion: Approve Resolution No. 08-21 

10. Prepared by: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 

12. Council Action: 

13. Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 2/1/2021 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



CITY OF ELKO 
RESOLUTION NO. 08-21 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE 
OF MONEY IN THE ELKO REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND FOR CONSTRUCTION 
OF THE 4TH, 5TH, AND 6TH STREET BLOCK ENDS 

Upon introduction and motion by Council Member _____ and seconded by 
Council Member _____ the following Resolution was passed and adopted by no less than 
a two-thirds vote of the Elko City Council: 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 279.628(2)(c), by resolution of the Elko City Council 
adopted by a two-thirds vote, any money in the revolving fund maintained by the Elko 
Redevelopment Agency may be paid to the Elko Redevelopment Agency, upon such terms and 
conditions as the Elko City Council may prescribe for any expenses necessary or incidental to the 
carrying out of the Elko Redevelopment Plan; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 279.486(1) and Article II(G)(l)(c) of the Elko 
Redevelopment Plan, the Elko Redevelopment Agency may, with the consent of the Elko City 
Council, pay all or part of the cost of the construction of any building, facility, structure or other 
improvement and the installation of any improvement which is publicly or privately owned and 
located within or without the redevelopment area; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 279.486(3), before the City Council may give its consent to 
an action proposed by the Redevelopment Agency pursuant to NRS 279.486(1), the City Council 
must determine that: (a) the buildings, facilities, structures or other improvements are of benefit 
to the redevelopment area or the immediate neighborhood in which the redevelopment area is 
located; and (b) no other reasonable means of financing those buildings, facilities, structures or 
other improvements are available; 

WHEREAS; the foregoing determinations by the City Council are final and conclusive; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NRS 279.486(4), in reaching its determination that the 
buildings, facilities, structures or other improvements are of benefit to the redevelopment area or 
the immediate neighborhood in which the redevelopment area is located, the City Council shall 
consider: 

(a) Whether the buildings, facilities, structures or other improvements are likely to: 
(1) Encourage the creation of new business or other appropriate development; 
(2) Create jobs or other business opportunities for nearby residents; 
(3) Increase local revenues from desirable sources; 
(4) Increase levels of human activity in the redevelopment area or the immediate 

neighborhood in which the redevelopment area is located; 
(5) Possess attributes that are unique, either as to type of use or level of quality 

Page 1 of 3 



and design; 
(6) Require for their construction, installation or operation the use of qualified and 

trained labor; and 
(7) Demonstrate greater social or financial benefits to the community than would 

a similar set of buildings, facilities, structures or other improvements not paid for by the 
redevelopment agency. 

(b) The opinions of persons who reside in the redevelopment area or the immediate 
neighborhood in which the redevelopment area is located. 

( c) Comparisons between the level of spending proposed by the Elko Redevelopment 
Agency and projections, made on a proforma basis by the redevelopment agency, of future 
revenues attributable to the buildings, facilities, structures or other improvements; 

WHEREAS, the City Council established the Elko Redevelopment Agency revolving 
fund as a Capital Projects Fund by resolution dated June 23, 2009; 

WHEREAS, the City Council converted the Elko Redevelopment Agency revolving fund 
from a Capital Projects Fund to a Special Revenue Fund by resolution dated February 11, 2014; 

WHEREAS, on February 14, 2017, the Elko Redevelopment Agency approved a phasing 
sequence for Project 3 of Phase 1 of the Downtown Corridor project, to include the installation of 
various improvements on the block ends on Fourth, Fifth and Sixth Streets "the "Block End 
Project;" 

WHEREAS, the improvements in the Block Ends Project include installation, 
reconstruction or construction of sidewalks, curbs, gutters, storm drains, irrigation and lighting; 
expansion of downtown landscaping; and visual enhancement and beautification of the area; 

WHEREAS, the Block End Project will use Redevelopment Agency funds; 

WHEREAS, the Elko City Council desires to consent to the aforementioned expenditures 
proposed by the Elko Redevelopment Agency to permit the utilization of Redevelopment Agency 
funds for the aforementioned purposes; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED BY THE ELKO CITY 
COUNCIL THAT, after discussion and due consideration of the information, factors, opinions 
and data required by NRS 279.486(4), the work proposed for the Block End Project, as described 
in the minutes of the February 14, 2017 meeting of the Elko Redevelopment Agency and the 
foregoing recitals, is hereby found to constitute buildings, facilities, structures or other 
improvements that are of benefit to the redevelopment area and the immediate neighborhood in 
which the redevelopment area is located; 

IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that no other reasonable means of financing those 
buildings, facilities, structures or other improvements are available; 

Page 2 of 3 



IT IS FURTHER RESOLVED that the Elko City Council hereby authorizes the 
expenditure of funds by the Redevelopment Agency from its Special Revenue Fund in the 
amount of $675,000, and consents to the work proposed for the Block End Project, as described 
in the minutes of the February 14, 2017 meeting of the Elko Redevelopment Agency and the 
foregoing recitals. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 11th day of February, 2021. 

ATTEST: 

KELLY WOOLDRIDGE, CITY CLERK 

VOTE: 
AYES: 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

CITY OF ELKO 

By: _______________ _ 

REECE KEENER, MAYOR 

Page 3 of 3 



Agenda Item VII. A. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval of issuing a revised Retail 
Liquor License to Gold Bar / Sartini Gaming, LLC, modifying the current Retail 
Liquor License to remove Sean Higgins and add Phyllis Gilland and Stephen 
Arcana, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: February 11, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: PETITION 

4. Time Required: 5 Minutes 

5. Background Information: N/A 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: N/ A 
Budget amount available: N/A 
Fund name: N/ A 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: NIA 

9. Recommended Motion: Approve the issuance of a revised Retail Liquor License to 
Gold Bar / Sartini Gaming, LLC, modifying the current Retail Liquor License to 
remove Sean Higgins and add Phyllis Gilland and Stephen Arcana. 

10. Prepared by: Ty Trouten, Elko Police Chief 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: 

12. Council Action: 

13. Council Agenda Distribution: Phyllis Gilland 

Created on 1/16/2021 

8050 Castle Pines Ave. 
Las Vegas, NV 89119 

Council Agenda Action Item 

Stephen Arcana 
777 Tozzetti Lane 
Henderson, NV 89012 

Page 1 of 1 



ELKO POLICE DEPARTMENT 

1448 Silver Street 
Elko, Nevada 89801 
775.777.7310 
775.738.1415 Fax 
wwwelkocity .com 

DATE: January 25, 2021 

TO: Curtis Calder, City Manager 

FROM: Ty Trouten, Police Chief 

Ty Trouten 
Police Chief 

SUBJECT: Retail Liquor License Application in the name of Gold Bar, 3600 W. Idaho Street, Elko, 
NV 89801. 

On November 2, 2020, Phyllis Gilland and Stephen Arcana made application to amend the current 
Retail Liquor License to remove Sean Higgins and add Phyllis Gilland and Stephen Arcana to the 
license. 

Ms. Gilland and Mr. Arcana have successfully completed the required background investigation. 

I am requesting the Elko City Council approve the request to amend the current retail Liquor License, 
adding Phyllis Gilland and Stephen Arcana to the Retail Liquor License in the name of CGold Bar, 
located at 3600 W. Idaho Street, Elko, NV 89801. 

TT/tle 

CC: Mayor Reece Keener 



Agenda Item VII. B. 

Elko City Council 
Agenda Action Sheet 

1. Title: Discussion of the rules on placement of sheds within the City of Elko, the 
Variance process, and the associated Variance fees, and matters related thereto. 
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Meeting Date: February 11, 2021 

3. Agenda Category: PETITION 

4. Time Required: 15 Minutes 

5. Background Information: The property owners of 2034 Eagle Ridge Loop built a shed 
in the exterior side yard of their lot without permits and after being informed that a 
shed would not be allowed in that location. City Code Section 3-2-5(B)(6) requires 
that accessory structures comply with the same setbacks as the primary structure 
and Section 2-1-4(G)(l)(a)(l)(A) requires a building permit for accessory structures 
of any size within residential areas. The Development Manager, acting as the City's 
Code Enforcement Officer, sent out two violation letters to the property owners. 
This discussion was requested by the property owners as a result of those letters. 
MR 

6. Budget Information: 

Appropriation Required: NI A 
Budget amount available: N/ A 
Fund name: N/ A 

7. Business Impact Statement: Not Required 

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Request Letter from Property Owners, Memo 
from Development Manager, Memo from City Planner, Email from 
Developer/Builder, Violation Letters, Photos 

9. Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Council 

10. Prepared by: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager 

11. Committee/Other Agency Review: None 

12. Council Action: 

13. Council Agenda Distribution: 

Created on 02/03/2021 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1 



Tom and Sherri Smith 

2034 Eagle Ridge Loop 

Elko, NV 89802 

775-340-8453 

I 

To whom it may cpncern: 

' i 
I 

We are formally r~questing to placed on the agenda for the Elko City Council meeting for 2-11-2021. We 

Would like to dis~uss the rules on placement of non-permitted, non-permanent sheds within the city of 

Elko, NV. We woJld also like to discuss the process of the variance procedures as well as the fees that 

are being charge~ to each applicant. 

Thank you for yo~r time in this matter. 
I 

Respectfully, 

Tom and Sherri Stth 

I 



City of Elko Development Department 
1751 College Avenue 

Elko, NV 89801 
(775) 777-7210 

FAX (775) 777-7219 

Memorandum 
To: 
From: 
RE: 
Date: 

Mayor and City Council 
Michele Rambo, AICP - Development Manager 
2034 Eagle Ridge Loop 
February 11, 2021 

Tom and Sherry Smith have requested that an item be placed on the City Council agenda to discuss their 
shed located at 2034 Eagle Ridge Loop in the Humboldt Hills subdivision. This request comes after they 
received a second notice that the shed on their property was in violation of City Code by being placed in 
the exterior side yard setback per City Code Section 3-2-S(B)(G). Additionally, the shed was built 
without a building permit as required under City Code Section 2-1-4(G)(l)(a)(l)(A) and, therefore, may 
or may not be in compliance with either the Building Department or Fire Department codes. 

Timeline of Events: 

During the final inspection of 2034 Eagle Ridge Loop, Cathy Laughlin (City Planner) and I noticed a gravel 
pad had been placed on the north side of the house. When we asked the representative from the 
developer/builder what the gravel pad was going to be used for, he responded that the new owners 
were planning to put a shed in that location. Cathy and I then informed the developer/builder that a 
shed would not be allowed in that location because it was within the required 15-foot setback area. He 
then indicated that he would inform the new owners. 

During an inspection of a different house in that neighborhood a few months later, Cathy observed that 
the shed had been built despite our conversation with the developer/builder. I emailed the 
developer/builder that day to find out why the shed had been built and inform them that it needed to 
be removed. The developer/builder responded that they had warned the homeowner about building 
the shed, but they had chosen to build it anyway. This email is attached for your reference. 

On December 8, four days after its discovery, I sent out a letter notifying the Smith's that the shed 
needed to be removed from the setback area. A copy of this letter is attached. Mrs. Smith called me a 
few days later to ask about the letter. I informed her about the discussion in which the 
developer/builder was told a shed would not be permitted in that location and asked her if that 
message had been relayed to her. She stated that the developer/builder had told her that the shed 
might be an issue. When I suggested that she move the shed to a different location on the property, 
she stated that she did not want to go to the time and expense of moving it and moving it would 
interfere with the activities in other parts of the yard. She then asked about the possibility of getting a 
Variance. 



I discussed the Variance process with her, but told her I could not recommend approval of a Variance 
because we could not make the legal finding requiring a hardship exist on her property. As I explained 
to her, this finding is typically made because the size, shape, or topography of the site is unique in a way 
that hinders the use of the property. Her lot does not meet any of these criteria. I suggested she speak 
to Cathy Laughlin about the Variance process in more detail. Please see the attached memo from Cathy 
Laughlin detailing her conversation(s) with Mrs. Smith. Cathy later informed me that Mrs. Smith 
indicated that she would be filing an application for a Variance. With this information, I put off further 
enforcement action until the Planning Commission could make a decision on the Variance. 

The week of January 18th
, I followed up with Cathy to find out if a Variance application was received. 

She told me that while Mrs. Smith had submitted an application, it was not complete and was missing 
the required surveyed site plan. I was further told that one of the local surveyors had been contacted 
to provide an estimate of the cost of this site plan to the applicant. Cathy then reached out to the 
surveyor to find out the status of the site plan, only to find that Mrs. Smith had never entered into a 
contract to have it done. 

With the shed still in place and no forward movement being made with the Variance application, I sent 
out a second violation notice to the Smiths on January 28th requesting that either the shed be removed 
or the Variance application be completed (attached). The request for placing this item on the City 
Council agenda came on February 2, 2021. 

Typical Shed Requirements: 
Per Section 2-1-4(G)(l)(a)(l)(A), the City of Elko Building Department requires building permits for 
"additional detached accessory buildings or structures of any size when built in conjunction with a 
building or structure that is classified as a Group R, Division 3 one-family or two-family dwelling." In 
order to get this permit, the applicant must go through a site plan review process. After completing an 
application and providing plans to the Building Department, the information is sent out for review by 
the Development, Planning, Engineering, and Fire Departments. One of the main things we look for in 
those reviews is whether or not the shed is within a setback area. Other areas of concern include 
making sure that any stormwater drains away from the shed without impacting other structures, the 
shed does not block any ingress or egress points, and the shed doesn't interfere with Fire Department 
access to the home. If all of these criteria are met, the Building Department issues the permit to build 
the shed. Once the construction is complete, an inspection is conducted by all of the departments 
mentioned above. 



CITY OF ELKO 
Planning Department 

Website: www.elkocity.com 
Email: planning@Jci.elko.nv.us 

1751 College Avenue· Elko,Nevada89801 • (775)777-7160 • Fax(775)777-7119 

Memorandum 

To: Michele Rambo 
From: Cathy Laughlin -City Planner ~ 
Date: February 2t 2021 

Re: Variance application for 2034 Eagle Ridge Loop 

Shelby and I spoke to Mrs. Sherri Smith on the phone regarding the process for a variance. I 
provided her history on variance applications for sheds which were denied by Planning 
Commission and emphasized the fact that the hardship needed to be provided. I provided her the 
variance section of code (3-2-22) in which all six factors must be met. 

On January 12, 2021, we received an application for a variance from Mrs. Smith. After the initiaJ 
review, Shelby consulted with me on the site plan which was submitted. It was not in conformance 
with the application requirement of a licensed surveyor prepared site plan. Shelby called Mrs. 
Smith and explained that the application was incomplete and that she needed to provide the site 
plan prepared by a licensed surveyor. Two days later, I received a call from Mr. Bob Morley as he 
was not sure what the City of Elko needed from him as he was contacted by Mrs. Smith for a 
proposal. I spoke to Mr. Morley on Thursday January 28th and he stated he has not been hired by 
Mrs. Smith to provide the site plan for the variance application. We are still holding on to the 
application and check as it is considered incomplete. 

During my phone conversation with Mrs. Smith, she stated that her contractor had told her that the 
City would not do anything about the shed if she put it in the exterior side yard setback. She stated 
that there are numerous sheds around town all which are within the setback and I encouraged her 
to file a formal complaint form and we would foJJow up on them. 



CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
1751 College Avenue * Elko * Nevada * 89801 

(775) 777-7160 * (775) 777-7219 fax 

APPLICATION FOR VARIANCE 

APPLICANT(s): \ O (Y) ood ~beccci 5.Y"Y'\'1+-h 
MAILING ADDRESS: 2,03~ E oq le.. Q 1cJqt:: .. I oap 
PHONE NO (Home) ]15. -3.~Q · l '7 l J (Business) JJ5 -B,'-10 - 8:.45'3_ 
NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (If different): .SaY"V'I i:: 

(Property owner's consent in writing must be provided.) 
MAILING ADDRESS: ~Cltbe. 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED (Attach If necessary): 
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO.: QC))Q) HOZ.5 Address 20;3~ E oQ Je -2 1 clae.. 1 ,lc~p 
Lot(s), Block(s), &subdivision 
Or Parcel(s) & FIie No. 

FILING REQUIREMENTS: 

Complete Appllcatlon Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form 
must be complete and signed. Complete applications are due at least 21 days prior to the next 
scheduled meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission (meetings are the 1st Tuesday of 
every month). 

Fee: A $500.00 non-refundable fee must be paid. If in conjunction with a Rezone Application a 
$250.00 non-refundable fee must be paid. 

Plot Plan: A plot plan provided by a properly licensed surveyor depicting the existing condition 
drawn to scale showing property lines, existing and proposed buildings, building setbacks, 
parking and loading areas, driveways and other pertinent information must be provided. 

Elevation Plan: Elevation profile of all proposed buildings or alterations in sufficient detail to 
explain the nature of the request must be provided. 

Note: One .pdf of the entire application must be submitted as well as one set of legible, 
reproducible plans 8 ½" x 11" in size. If the applicant feels the Commission needs to see 24" x 
36" plans, 10 sets of pre-folded plans must be submitted. 

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and documentation 
to support this Variance application. 

Revised 1 /24/18 Page 1 



The APPLICANT requests the following variance from the following section of the zoning 

ordinance: 
/OX/CD 

'lo Place oocl Kee.p C>tn:: Shed on tlae. Side. a£ 
Q,..)C bo1J~- -\::no.\ 5 I ±s l O +:he. \ 5 l Se A: Boe;\:;:, 

1. The existing zoning classification of the property___,f;'--'1-, _-_\ ___________ _ 

2. The applicant shall present adequate evidence demonstrating the following criteria which are 

necessary for the Planning Commission to grant a variance: 

a) Identify any special circumstances, features or conditions applying to the property under 
consideration. i.e., unusual shape, configuration, exceptional topographic conditions or 
other extraordinary situations or conditions . 
our: pr:opec¼.f nn .J.-.he,... l3oc,;:,,, • :1 konq o nd ++,.,· a0. '. 

1F 6e_.. P tcpe rN , Slopes 'J:o · -\--he.. · \ c ~ 1 d sa of Prqp,.e,r-.J.t.i \f 

',JTI:... €.. Dn, • rcaq~ .··· 0i {)€,,S · c.) Q\Wt:3"? ,0 ~OL>A d -4::-:br . .aaa.. oS- HOU~ 
- ,-,y,, () ~"!. 

b) Identify how such circumstances, features or conditions result in practical difficulty or 
undue hardship and deprive the property owner of reasonable use of property. 

auc prop.e~d:<1 i ~ nc\: b i9 , Cue... t:60.u -S1ren 1 citl:b~r She.dJ 

,·,o od.;),O, n I n9 oe..,0ibboct hooo \Qr¼e.. {;a Me.,pkKe .. ~r6ti ·~ · "° 
OS he.. cl ,cl ro+ h:._..e. 

&?u :t t:kec, S bsecl th~ c,n k)Q cl;, rook., ,a e ,f?Jk.lJiY:, lt' ½-,) ,re~ ,,,,,.., 
o> f, I"\ \E.:.,10. \ )-fal'(jSh .p 1.f ~ are. mcide.. ~ rnov~ 

c) Indicate how the granting of the variance is necessary for the applicant or owner to 
make reasonable use of the property. IJ..)h"~ -.+'vv:,.,\ ~~ ,~ 1'0½ ~\ .. 

l,1, ,e,... pot +¼e Sh,c:,d Dn +he.. 5,de , .So -+~.n~ \ue LlX).j\d hoV:e-. ' 
a \, +\)e.. Spoo,. ,n 6uc.t.. l\CLvd hsr CY CbtldY~n qv-0~1\dren 

.\c ~\0..1.,v, (i)v:1 CA s IJ.,1) (\~ ~I ?\6q E.C1/.,J1 PW"l r'..-:C.•CH>SeQ.. \~ Sh.e.J U,.:,C\ lla.,.., 
.:::..~Sp:i.c,.., ~\_~yt_. ,..\- \}JO\J\cl 'y\ ,.. l'Y\ 100 \e.. o£, '/OY-6- -\--h(),\- IS our OY\ 14 USLO-
c) d) Identify how such circumstances, features or conditions do not apply generally to other 

properties in the same Land Use District. 
tJ.)he-"e. :\::\o,a, Sb:ed s • +s on +:h~ S,c\t. ~ rooc,l. + 1.s on o.. 

'(l_oaq 
~. ::::thex,e,., cu·e nc St<>p S 1c,·c~ on £ i¼C-K Comu, or 
G\ross i-r~f ,·" :' · '-fhe:,.v-E..- 1s no f:..c\r--ess I Or•ve-~ on f),e.'~,d-e 
C>t Rooo whe..y~ ure. 'Shed --s,'r-5 . \.u-e_ \ \\AL lY") Q Sobe}\ v,s,on 

-\"> 'l O . 

w 14-h D'l-)h,l «')he. I.A.X>.'-\ \Y'\ 5o lJJL ho.v-t- Ve.yY.L-IH·)e... ~rc,.f+1c... 

our Sl,acl cloe_\ 'f\o} B\oc...~ (..or~ or ON-1 tY'o}r/C.., TYICA+' 

Revised 1/24/18 \J..U.)\cl Q.t.. S~1'-K4 &,;;~ '- Page 2 



e) Indicate how the granting of the variance will not result in material damage or prejudice 
to other properties in the vicinity nor be detrimental to the public health, safety and 
general welfare. 
a uc ..S b :e.d !:> d 5i 1 1 ) 'b :e 'Cf , C\\ a:: n e. , a, h b C> cs Lno o · -t s e.. e , '"' w h i \Q... 

-\-'oei ~ QvQ \ o ::l::b e.,., c Bcic,k:., i o rd5 , So.:£e. .. ¼ \ S'S\ :es (V)Ore,. occ.ess, b 

s;-,)r:: f \Y'.:(.. e.,Y'G\ 1 YLeS, B, >+ w~. d oa · +- b ou-9 Q.C>w~r o""'c) 0-½0re 
on~ CX\Y'\St'rY'\o'S. \...\O.v-c) Sru&~ Qncl (.)\J\ eieuv-- rui--r-,~rc... uc. 

f) Indicate how the variance will not be in conflict with the purpose or intent of the Code. 

i + w 1 1 \ o o 1 C,b onq-e. +h .g__ \and 11.se -;, fl t'.')C) · t t- 1.S nof 

i a r:c..rf:<"eY\ oc, l.u, ili, S~fe.\:y Ot On Cffiy\, oc., -\-re# \.C.., QY') 

C oYo e.v: \ cl s , ex 8:d<:>c:..'C..1 n'1 +\.. ..e.e v , e..w et \-0\nL\ +'I""?)# Jc:.i Of- C\' 
C.. ~ Y\e...v- \ ~t . W-'L \ \ \JUL OY") ~ p ~ I -\Jn Y'\0 'S~f-) 'S \0\ "'1 . C.r.C) 
'r'I C) <c.... '>< <-~ 'S ) +'f'"tl #- \ <:- c..a m , n ~ h-1 . 

g) Indicate how the granting of the variance will n'ot:7esult in a change of land use or zoning 
classification. 

• .\- dc,-e-4 no l c -hcn~>9-R I <::>.nd \ls:&. 0 ~ G..\\. 

W::e-:: r'L'4~} \!,)C,)Y\¼: ::tO \_e Qu,,,P C:].Jr ,Shgc) en +\-..,._. S12\.JL,,r 

t.,\.,¼,. ~ us} V\.PI}. d 5-e .t b o c.1 v a r::1 o nc e .. it;Y ,She.cL ------- \' 

h) Indicate how granting of the variance will not substantially impair affected natural 
resources. 

1 +- d c::::c '\ VlO l O ff c cl c~ 10' \ 0 0 h ,ro.\ te.scsi Mt.-~ 0--S -\.,~ 

Sne<l ,s ?lo<S\.cJ an rcxx. C>'1 k>p a:t q~ ()<) ?o~r-
~ ~he.cl· . 

3. Describe your ability (i.e. sufficient funds or a loan pre-approval letter on hand) and intent to 

construct within one year as all variance approvals must commence construction within one year 

and complete construction within 18 months per City Code Section 3-2-22 F.1.: l 1,-0 bQt,.Q..., 

a \ r:e a d4 'P \ o. c...ec.~ U ,_ Sb e..r°l :not k: Vl c 5\.,. " o c 1 +be,\.. \J..,).e_ ~d 
'00\: 9u:r- \>r tbeve.., cine) Yu ► au..- £-e.:nc,P,, r..p. P,c ~ 
ct~ o c~ u:) S bu"''>, o) SR >.t:!tvt). \ S he.c.-, , n 5 uY½..e.. p \ex 1!. o S 
c:vr:S . l,)..:i.~ d I cl V\O. J. ho v,.l... ¾ pe.-Y'VY\ I .J- c..)Jr s hco &...) ..\-'h~, 

(Use additional pages if necessary to address questions 2a through h) 

This area lntentlonally left blank 

Revised 1 /24/18 Page3 



By My Signature below: 

12T I consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property only for the sole purpose of 

inspecting said property as part of this application process. 

D I object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of 

this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination 
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.) 

62(' I acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by 

the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it in 
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses. 

~I acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either I or my 

designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is 
scheduled. 

~ have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the 

best of my ability. 

Applicant/Agent :Toto and Sb.em Sm, lli 
(Please print or type) 

Malling Address -~,._..... ...... ,3._y.....___Ea~o.:.,;n:,q....,...\.e..,....._____.Q.,~l d__,_,,,n....,.e_ ______ Lao~.,_,D=----
~ Str~t Addressorfi.O. Box r 

City, State, Zip Code 

Phone Number: 7 75- 3 40 • 8 L../53 

Email address: l()t'Y) ond:Sbe.r::na.3 cO J..fcJl-nia, }, cen-. 

SIGNATURE:,,& Q/VlJ dfn.A 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

FIie No.: _____ Date Flied: ______ Fee Paid __ : _______ _ 

RECEIVED 

JAN 1 2 2021 

Revised 1/24/18 Page4 



January 11 th 
, 2021 

Tom and Sherri Smith 
2034 Eagle Ridge Loop 
Elko, Nevada 89808 
775-340-8453 

Re: Setback Variance for 10xl6 shed placement 

To Whom it may concern: 

I would like to thank you in advance for taking the time to hear us. There has been some 
miscommunication between the builder, the city and on our part on the placement of our 
shed. We have seen other sheds in nearby neighborhoods, that did not have to be 
pennittedjust as ours placed in the same setbacks on a comer lot. We thought that we 
could place our shed there along as it did not interfere with the safety of traffic and our 
neighbors. I have attached pictures that show the sheds. and they sit closer to the comer 
where there is stop sign and cross traffic. 

We placed our shed so that you do not see it until you are almost up around the comer 
and it does not block the corner and we put it towards the back of our house. You see our 
fence before you see the shed. This is one street into our neighborhood that is a loop and 
there is no stop sign or cross traffic that our shed would impede on. There will be no 
driveway on the same side of the road for our shed to interfere with someone trying to 
enter the street. We have no power to the shed, and we store our Christmas, yard 
decorations and patio furniture in it. We do not store anything unsafe in the shed. 
Pictures attached 

We tried to make the best use of our lot as it is not big. Placing our shed in the 15' set 
back side provides a safe and useful space in our back yard for our grandkids to play in. 
The other side of our house we have our 34-foot 5th wheel trailer and a 14ft A TV trailer 
that sits on the side so that is off the street and behind the fence not in front of our house. 
We inherited a little truck. and it sits in front on the driveway. We have tried to make our 
lot nice and useable and keep stuff off the streets and behind our fence for safety and so 
that we do not have stuff out to junk up our neighborhood as you see around Elko. 

If we are not granted the setback variance for our shed that sits in the same place as other 
sheds do in the City of Elko this will be financially devasting for us. We have used our 
savings to build our dream home. We would have to pay for someone to remove our 
fence that was just put in and probably ending up having to purchase more due to the 
vinyl fence polls are cemented in and then paying again to re-install. We have our shut 



off valve and sprinkler system behind the shed that may be in the way of the removal of 
the shed and then the cost and finding someone that could possibly move it without 
tearing up my curbing, sprinklers, shed, etc. 
Along with a shed that we may not be able to use, as we have sprinklers throughout our 
back yard. Our shed is a 1Ox16 so it will not really fit well over on the other side if it fits 
at all, it will sit right in the middle of our yard which is the only useable space for our 
grandkids to play safely. Then we have the cost of a shed we cannot use. We hope that 
you can see that we placed the shed where it does not interfere with any natural 
resources, any safety issues concerning traffic or our neighbor's safety. That we have 
made it nice so that our neighborhood will be a nice one with stuff off the streets unlike 
others within Elko City. 

Thank you again for your time, 

Tom and Sherri Smith 



HVW3Vl.lS ... 

N\lld 311S 
d001 3~01~ 318 V3 v£0l 

-t-

EACll.E ~ LOOP 

-
.. 
P. 

~ .... 

~uaa,uf )tlJOO,U'\YNV J.t0JX'IOOM4 

I s 
I :: 

'" i 
" 
I 
' .. 
' ' 

-+-.-
_a 

...J:: 
~ 

UJ 



I' 

. 
J ~WMt;tl row<>; 

1.lt..'.{l.lC •' 

,r 
C -....... 

V, ,.-
V, 

X 

vJ 

J 
~ 

u 

"' ).· 
-< 
rn 

·-
A-

~ 

0 

f 
-1 

VJ 

_J-

' (\ 'S 
~ ~ \ 

• <I')~ i! 
·• •.I 
)l~'Z!' 

d001~,n,,t3 

~ 
( 

0 

~ --~ 
Q) 

' )- a) 
A-

VJ I.>-

□ • 
<l ~ - o) <:t ~ 

2034 EAGLE RIDGE LOOP 
SITE PLAN 

~~ 
1- ~ 
~ 

y , 

~ 

~ 
~ 
Iii ~ 
a ','t 

I 

'BRAEMAR 



LOT15 

:)T 16 

ij' 

r-
1 r 1s 
t 
T~ 

l 
I 

! r-
r 19 

cy, • .,. , ... M.lkJ -l ~ ~ ' " ,4>,G la 

'®®@ 
r 20 \ 
·®® \ 

i~ 

'1. 

LOT 14•0 

..... 

\,..,,,. .. . ,.,,. ®@@ ;;...r,.., ,,. .. ,v......,~ 

LOT 23 

LOT 22 

LOT 21 
'" •CIC.N• •OOt" 

~Ji~:~~.~~ @® 

------- -----

LOT13 LOT12 
LOT 11 

6'0LEIIDCIEl.00P 

;:.1;;;-,-~- •: ~ /-~ 
L ~ 

~ ' .' ~" ,I, • )t t ~ :,J"'.t'. ";;•,1~~, ... J . .~ ... ~-~ t~ LOT10 

LOT 24 
"20.3'-i rill' j,: ;:;..,~ 

I 

w~ LOT9 

LOT 25 ~ 
T 

J' 
I 

t 
LOTS 

LOT 26 

-~~ ···· --~PlL , ; , 1• '-"T •"6-.-C:!.(f'll"";,' 

-··7r I ···7t 
.\,~I;~- ____JC;: .. . - ;.',,o 

l EAOL!Pixie~ .. -.-.•-~- ___..,_ -~ 

LOT 2 LOT4 

£.xY\ 1 b 1 + 3 

LOTS 

LOT? 
-•._ -- ' I> i, "U)(, , .·c ! I 

._.., .... , >:-r"" •"""-\ •t>~·.m- ·· @ 

LOT6 

z 

LEGEND 

~..,., ... ,,. 
,....._,,,,,.,.,,, ... ..... __ ..,. 
------~,,,.wt..._...., ------------------~----·----------__ ................... --------
------CWDll. .......... ,-:w .,._. .. ..,.~.c,, 

WATER NOTES: 

t:1 
S>~ 

" D 
, :-'{'-.... .... 

-115--.. 
Jl 
0 

CJ 
CJ 

@ 

J.U.-""O>WM$\IUltll"N'Uo:?lQC'llt .. 11Uftlll~ 

A.l,.,.1'H llr✓U Nj,,!J.,.._lt11-.w,,., ...... ,,~ 
3 "..L~11'.il' ... !M'not:Stk.Ulil!:U)~ . t """"'1-.1,r It, ,, l. ' "" 

• _.,, .,,.,.,.,. .. ,., ,_,...., , r• !"I., ,., ,,,r, t:•U _ _., IJVI ... 

u t.H'tlCMra:tc.,r .. ..,ON,#tnOn .... , '•""-"' Wt.l'f"'fll~ 
""A?fllW'T!"--"UIU:1t,,'C!c.»Hf.CT10tf,H;;~~""-' 

t 1,J,.WC'T'Ctt3"""-L.llt'lt,CH.. 

• A,~,::,,,,.....,.... fl,4,A"'IC»,MJ..·ALL!Jfwflr. ~r,-l(ff,. ...... -:n, --' ,1,-C,Jl'OOf,a,,1,"""• c:;,.i,'II J IC""'-1.fJW'<llt'l:Tlil'Ct"fW,I,~ 
•Jlr.JA,."C;l,,~fl,_..,._ 

·o "'411'R"""'t.f'W'IIH.11trl",N1'~ I'll A/'rlPHrlr>#IA~":k6'N('M' 
N«>LOU'"!'ClilflC..U.TJtr,._AR'tM~...OUOUTU>e:~ 

11 ..isr...._ ,,,. .. . 11,n.r ... .-1~ • -~. ~~~ 

l"f,1,fl".:II--.....CUS.OtwllOO<""XG.Qt..-£Y,ID ~O,ll,IO( •.n
Ol<CMC""Q.Ok.l"C,.,C:C'!Ul"r,:rtl 

·:- . ....... ,i, __ ,.,,,.......-r. lf'lo1•~(J1t t•n.a:•n11-Wll 
nfH,Jll'! ... ,.T !t-1".::tlNfAooe.l~U,W,1. ._..,...tfflrM;..t<¥<J...,_:n..o 
PQAfNr,oO"l'T#. t':SM,,1..LIN:!te~'tl'IIICJQltl~JJ"'YT:I 
COC,JiON,,11':T!O~W!"'ltMC.11YO#l:'.JI-,_ 

,, ro,l,j,,,..,, .. ,..:rr,.....,,_, ,.:i 

u, 1 .... ( fl:Hr.•· 

• rW'(W"r,.,..l'trC11'"'",.,".,,.LNt...:11,....,,.,.. (.~,....,.., 
'°"-o,>(IISittlA .... l<A,'l!V0,1,.>erOIIN,_,...#e~L'Cl-l!ZIII 
'1~lf"'H3• "0fllLrlAlJO'IVot:11CA"lON...:Pl0-WUHT!w'fr ttWO' 
0"I ro.i ~ CGUSfllVCflOl,f 

r.t-.'1,w,,1,.rt)<•.,IIC;.r~,.-...,.,,;, ·ic..1.:oi;, \l.l" ..,- -.<,I!,•,..,·, "'-- .,""!..,.u,,....,.,.:.~" 
.._ .. _..o;.,. .. ~,-.1'.•::·.,..,.,. ..,.,,,,r·,,...,..._..,. .. ,. ·•• 

~-1;·•,,,,.,-,<j L . ..C U,,0.0 .. '1'1 Cl• ,tt• '. ''"-'< '.~1,A 

!;"~-~•~~-.:,. .. ,,.r::;::~ ~:\: ~ ••;:/'!. -~~'~;::t II • 
,.,.. .. .... ,.... ••t~ .... m,.,,.IL\in~.1"- '-'.'·-:"':< \ 

• ,.. •. > •• ,,,.,,~\"'-.I,.'.""' :L~- • •IV,.'I ,O,.·~~: .. ,, ...... 
•"'1 ,. --- ., ••-.c-:,,,. ,..,,,,~ .. -

• {/ . ·~·· 

w,,;JAPPRCV,.._ 

'4" 0 Y' "V 00 ,n 

SCALE 1' •½:: 

~,\ 
~ ~ 
mt 

~l:t 

~~ r~ 
a:~ 
·ii s 
IJJ
c::_ I 

I);! -~~,lij~ 
It! "S C:i If 
Ut>i.:111 

(.) 
..J 
..J Cl) 

-..J 
Cl) ..J z 
~:i:~c!s 
1-..,_CL~ 
ffioa::~ 
CL ..J UJ ci 
001-"' a:: en <Cu:: 
CL~~ ::::, 
(I) I 
0 
0 

~j~~i~ 
t : t ~ 

~ fl Q 
~ i u i. 
~~a~ l 

SCALE 
ICl'<!t 1 "o l(I 

,1~1 • N'A 

SHEET 

C5 
OF 17 











U-., 

0 

C 
0 

..l-

~ J 
._) 0 
:r-

~ 
0 -cJ VJ --
0 ~ 

- -j 
( 



\- V-0 'YY\O(e__ S hecl0 Oh C.o'<Y\ e.x-- \ o-\--s ,, 0 hd '1€..-)( t 10 Stree..-t. 

¼o. t , s \S e...,\-v0-e,.e.,v) ~ m6 \C.. ~ o o<l a n ci \-k5m rJ o l cl t S \J b d , v , s 1 0 n S' 



,-·~---

1 
I 
I 



...-tv V) 

C ~ 
0 



(/) 

e§j ().) 
~ 

u J_ 
V) ~ C: 

0 ' - (/) 

~ -¥ 
0~ 

uJ 

1/) _.l.-

--0 
0 
0 

)(. ,...-t- ~ 1 
6 ~ ,+- -~ 
{ s:: - >,! 

- 3 :s 8 -
&, b 

~ >-
C T ~ --::;: 

I 
f 9" j ( 

3 cfl 3 -



December 8, 2020 

Tom and Sherri Smith 
2034 Eagle Ridge Loop 
Elko, NV 89801 

Re: Violation of City Code - Shed within Setback 

Mr. and Mrs. Smith: 

City of Elko - Development Department 
1755 College Avenue 

Elko, NV 89801 
Telephone: 775.777.7210 

The City of Elko has become aware that a shed was constructed within the setback on your property 
located at 2034 Eagle Ridge Loop. A visual inspection confirmed that a shed was placed on the north side 
of the property. 

City Code Section 3-2-5 B requires that any "detached accessory building that is erected shall conform to 
front and side yard setback requirements". Section 3-2-5 G further specifies that the exterior side yard 
(street side yard) within the Rl Zoning district requires a 15-foot setback. According to City records, the 
house sits on this setback line, which would prohibit any other structures from being built on that side of 
the house. 

Based on this information, the shed is considered to have been built illegally and must be removed. 

Please remove the shed within 10 days of receipt of this letter. Allowing the property to stay in the 
current condition constitutes a violation of the municipal code and may lead to civil action by the City of 
Elko. 

Please contact me at (775) 777-7217 if you have any questions and/or to confirm your compliance. 

Sincerely, 

Michele Rambo, AICP 
Development Manager 
mrambo@elkocitynv.gov 

Page 1 of 2 



cc: City of Elko - File 
City of Elko - Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager 
City of Elko - Ty Trouten, Chief of Police 
City of Elko - Jeff Ford, Building Official 
City of Elko - Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

Page 2 of 2 



Michele L. Rambo 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 

dustyshipp@gmail.com 
Friday, December 4, 2020 12:37 PM 

Cathy Laughlin 

Subject: 
Michele L. Rambo; dusty@braemarco.com; Aaron Nelson; Scott A. Wilkinson 

Re: Code Violation(s) at Humboldt Hills 

Good afternoon ladies. We are aware of the shed situation and did warn the homeowners that if they constructed it 

could be potentially flagged by the city. This was built after we finished the home by others not Braemar. 

Thank you 

Dusty Shipp 
Shipp Group 
Kw Group One Inc. 

775-934-5785 

Owner/Operator Braemar Construction LLC 

On Dec 4, 2020, at 12:00 PM, Cathy Laughlin <claughlin@elkocitynv.gov> wrote: 

Dusty and Aaron, 

The other shed that Michele is referring to I believe meets the code requirements and is fine as I did a 

little more research. The only concern we have is the one at 2034 Eagle Ridge Loop. 

Thanks, 

Catfiy Laugfiun 
City P{anner 

(775)777-7160 ph 
(775)777-7219 fax 
claughlin@elkocitynv.gov 

City of Elko 
1751 College Avenue 
Elko, NV 89801 

From: Michele L. Rambo <mrambo@elkocitynv.gov> 
Sent: Friday, December 04, 2020 11:57 AM 

To: dusty@braemarco.com; dustyshipp@gmail.com; Aaron Nelson <aaron@braemarco.com> 

Cc: Cathy Laughlin <claughlin@elkocitynv.gov>; Scott A. Wilkinson <sawilkinson@elkocitynv.gov> 

Subject: Code Violation(s) at Humboldt Hills 
Importance: High 

1 



Hi Dusty and Aaron. During an inspection today, the picture below was taken of the house on the 
northeast curve of Eagle Ridge Loop (2034). The shed shown in the picture was built after a 
conversation Cathy and I had with Aaron that the shed would NOT be allowed in this location because it 
does not comply with the required 15 foot setback. 

This shed is in violation of City Code and will need to be removed. I will be sending out a formal code 
violation letter to the property owners either later today or Monday. 

Apparently there is another shed being constructed at the moment that is also on the exterior side yard 
within the setback. If that one is completed, it will also be in violation of City Code and receive a code 
violation letter requiring its removal. 

Let me know if you have any questions. 

<image00l .jpg> 

Michele Rambo, AICP 
Development Manager 
City of Elko 
1751 College Avenue 
Elko, NV 89801 
775-777-7217 
mrambo@elkocitynv.gov 

2 



December 8, 2020 

Tom and Sherri Smith 
2034 Eagle Ridge Loop 
Elko, NV 89801 

Re: Violation of City Code - Shed within Setback 

Mr. and Mrs. Smith: 

City of Elko - Development Department 
1755 College A venue 

Elko, NV 89801 
Telephone: 775.777.7210 

The City of Elko has become aware that a shed was constructed within the setback on your property 
located at 2034 Eagle Ridge Loop. A visual inspection confirmed that a shed was placed on the north side 
of the property. 

City Code Section 3-2-5 B requires that any "detached accessory building that is erected shall conform to 
front and side yard setback requirements". Section 3-2-5 G further specifies that the exterior side yard 
(street side yard) within the Rl Zoning district requires a 15-foot setback. According to City records, the 
house sits on this setback line, which would prohibit any other structures from being built on that side of 
the house. 

Based on this information, the shed is considered to have been built illegally and must be removed. 

Please remove the shed within 10 days of receipt of this letter. Allowing the property to stay in the 
current condition constitutes a violation of the municipal code and may lead to civil action by the City of 
Elko. 

Please contact me at (775) 777-7217 if you have any questions and/or to confirm your compliance. 

Sincerely, 

Michele Rambo, AICP 
Development Manager 
mrambo@elkocitynv.gov 

Page 1 of 2 



cc: City of Elko - File 
City of Elko - Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager 
City of Elko - Ty Trouten, Chief of Police 
City of Elko - Jeff Ford, Building Official 
City of Elko - Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

Page 2 of 2 



City of Elko - Development Department 
1755 College Avenue 

January 28, 2021 

Tom and Sherri Smith 
2034 Eagle Ridge Loop 
Elko, NV 89801 

Re: Violation of City Code - Shed within Setback (2nd Notice) 

Mr. and Mrs. Smith: 

Elko, NV 89801 
Telephone: 775.777.7210 

On December 8, 2020, the City of Elko sent a letter requesting that the shed in your side yard be removed 
within 10 days because it is located in the required side yard setback. Staff allowed some extra time 
because there was indication that you would be submitting a Variance application. However, as of today, 
a complete application has not been received and the shed has not been removed. 

City Code Section 3-2-5 B requires that any "detached accessory building that is erected shall conform to 
front and side yard setback requirements". Section 3-2-5 G further specifies that the exterior side yard 
(street side yard) within the Rl Zoning district requires a 15-foot setback. According to City records, the 
house sits on this setback line, which would prohibit any other structures from being built on that side of 
the house. 

Based on this information, the shed is considered to have been built illegally and must be removed. 

Please remove the shed within 10 days of receipt of this letter. If the shed is not removed within that 
timeframe, the City will move forward with a legal Notice of Violation, which may lead to civil action by 
the City of Elko. This could include fines of $1,000 per day that the shed remains within the setback. 

The timely submittal of a complete Variance application to the Planning Department will postpone this 
enforcement action until such time as the Planning Commission determines if a Variance is appropriate. 

Please contact me at (775) 777-7217 if you have any questions and/or to confirm your compliance. 

Sincerely, 

Michele Rambo, AICP 
Development Manager 
mrambo@elkocitynv.gov 

Page 1 of 2 



cc: City of Elko - Fil e 
City of Elko - Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager 
City of Elko - Ty Trouten, Chief of Police 
City of Elko - Jeff Ford, Building Official 
City of Elko - Cathy Laughlin, City Planner 

Page 2 of 2 







I 
I 

I 






	2/11/2021 Agenda
	1/26/2021 Minutes
	II.A. - PD donation from Home Depot
	IV.E. - 2021 FEMA grant
	V.A. - re-appraisal of APN 001-013-018
	V.B. - Butch Smales Family Trust sale
	V.C. - 2020 Annual report Planning Commission Activities
	VI.A. - Resolution No. 07-21
	VI.B. - Resolution No. 08-21
	VII.A. - revised Liquor License Gold Bar
	VII.B. - Placement of Sheds



